
 
 

1 
 

BOARD MEETING 

December 4, 2019; 2:00 p.m. 
Renaissance World Golf Village and Convention Center 

Caddy Shack Restaurant 

TENTATIVE AGENDA 
*Action Item 

I. Call to Order/Roll Call  
  
II. Public Comment 
 
III. Review of Delegation of Authority Items 
 
IV. Approval of September 11, 2019 Annual Board Meeting Minutes* 
   
V. Staff  and Committee Reports 

A. CEO Report-Verbal 
B. Finance Manager’s Report 
C. 1st Quarter Program Update  
D. 1st Quarter Early Literacy Report 
E. Executive Administrative Committee, November 6, 2019-Cancelled 

 
VI. New/Unfinished Business 

A. Summary of D. Bell Annual Evaluation- HANDOUT* 
B. Approval of NEFEC Lease 2020-2021* 
C. Approval of Episcopal Children’s Services 2019/2020 Contract Amendment #0002-19* 
D. Retro Active Approval (effective 09/01/2019) of ELC of North Florida and the University of 

Florida/Lastinger Center Early Learning Florida Contract effective 09/01/19-08/31/20* 
E. Retro Active Approval (effective 09/01/2019) of ELC of North Florida – University of 

Florida/Lastinger Center and Episcopal Children’s Services Early Learning Florida Contract 
effective 09/01/19-08/31/20* 

F. Approval of 2019-21 School Readiness Plan Amendment #24 (Part 1 - Attachment II C 
Combined Eligibility Policies)* 

G. Approval of 2019-21 School Readiness Plan Amendment #24 (Part 2 - Attachment II I 
Provider Payment Rates)* 

H. Approval of Revisions to the Coalition’s Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual* 
I. Approval of the Management Decision Recommendation for ECS Audit 2018/2019* 
J. Approval of ELCNF 2018-2019 Annual Report* 
K.  Review of Board Membership- Informational 

 
VII. Board Absenteeism Log – INFORMATIONAL 

 



 
 

2 
 

VIII. Board Comment 
 
IX. Next Meetings 

• Wednesday, February 5th, 2020 10:30 a.m. – Exec/Admin Committee Conference Call 
Meeting 

• Wednesday, March 11th, 2020, 10:30 a.m. – Board Meeting 
X. Adjournment* 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.  
Board Meeting  

December 4, 2019 

I. Call to Order/Roll Call 

 

         

 

II. Public Comment 

 

         

 

III. Review of Delegation of Authority Items 

 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.  
Board Meeting  

December 4, 2019 
 

 

 

IV.  Approval of September 11, 2019 

 Board Meeting Minutes* 

 

 

 

*ACTION ITEM 
 



 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
Annual Board Meeting 
September 11, 2019 

World Golf Village Convention Center 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 

ANNUAL BOARD MEETING 
The Renaissance World Golf Village and Convention Center 

September 11, 2019 
10:30 a.m. 

 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Members Present: 
Myrna Allen 
Mary Garcia 
Brian Graham 
Marsha Hill 
Michelle Jonihakis 
Theresa Little, Treasurer 
Teresa Matheny, ECS 
Nancy Pearson, Chair 
Aubrie Simpson-Gotham 
Michael Siragusa 
Commissioner Jeb Smith 
Joy Stanton, Secretary 
Patricia Tauch 
Renee Williams, Vice Chair 
 

Members Absent: 
Ron Coleman, excused 
Brian McElhone, excused 
Charles Puckett, excused 
Kristi Simpkins, excused 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Staff Present: 
Dawn Bell, Chief Executive Officer 
Rhonda Cody, Office Manager 
Tajaro Dixon, Grants and Operations Manager 
Joan Whitson, Early Literacy Coordinator 
Susan Pettijohn, Finance Manager 
Christopher Spell, Finance Manager 

Others Present: 
Kyle Gammon, Board Nominee 

 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
Nancy Pearson called the meeting to order at 10:38 a.m.  Roll was taken; quorum was met, with 
14 of the 18 board members in attendance.   
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
No comments. 
 
 
REVIEW OF DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY ITEMS 
The Board designates authority to the Coalition’s Office Manager to review and approve the Chief 
Executive Officer’s timesheets, leave requests, work related travel expenses, and other routine 
operational requests.  These documents are made available at each regular board meeting for board 
review.  Delegation items were passed around with no discussion or questions on the items reviewed. 



 

Board Meeting 
September 11, 2019 

 

2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVAL OF JUNE 12, 2019 BOARD MEETING MINUTES* 
 

1. B. Graham motioned to approve the June 12, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes, as 
presented.  M. Allen seconded the motion. No discussion.  Motion passed 
unanimously.  
 

 
STAFF AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
CEO REPORT- REVIEW OF THE 2019 BOARD SELF EVAULATION REULTS  
D. Bell reviewed the results of the 2019 Board Self Evaluation. This evaluation allows both 
board and staff members to assess how we are all doing and identifies any gaps that we can 
provide support through materials or training.  Staff really looks for those 1 or 2 ratings to see if 
there may be a gap, whether it is individually or more globally as a board.  Eighteen Board 
Members participated in the self-evaluation where overall results was rated a 4.4 or “exceeds 
expectations”. 
 
FINANCE MANAGER’S REPORT-VERBAL 
S. Pettijohn reported on the following: 
 
Desk Reviews and Audits 
All Desk Reviews are closed at this time.  I’m sure we will be receiving another one soon. 
The field work for our external audit is scheduled to begin on Oct 14, 2019. 
 
Revenue and Expense Report (see below) 
The Revenue and Expense Report does not include the data filed on the 13th invoice to OEL.   
 
The net surplus is due to miscellaneous donations and reversal of expense accruals that were 
recorded on FY17-18 financial statements but paid by OEL in the FY18-19.   
 
Targets and Restrictions (see below) 
The coalition is currently in alignment with the grant required targets and restrictions. 
 
Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 
Balance Sheet 

  As of June 30, 2019 
  

   
   ASSETS 

  Cash, Operating 
 

 $             1,235,749  
Cash, Money Market 

 
31,671  

Petty Cash 
 

200  



 

Board Meeting 
September 11, 2019 

 

3 

 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 
OEL Grants - Targets and Restrictions 

 As of June 30, 2019 
 

  
  
  SR Direct Services, Min 78% 80.10% 
SR Admin, Max 5% 4.40% 
SR Admin/NonDirect/Quality Max, 22% 19.90% 
SR Quality Min, 4% 10.00% 
Infant & Toddler Min $236,540 $252,766.40  
Working Poor Eligible Match: $648,776 $203,287.84  
Pay for Performance Max, $129,447 $66,589.55  
PFP Quality Support & Proj Mgmt, $29,076 $12,420.11  
Program Assessment $267,900 $221,993.42  
CCEP Match:  $18,158 $17,394.54  
VPK Admin Max, 4% 3.58% 

 
 
 
 

OEL Receivable  
 

203,392  
Deposits 

 
850  

Prepaid Expense 
 

11,187  
Equipment 

 
8,549  

   Less:  Accumulated Depreciation (8,549) 

  
  TOTAL ASSETS 
 

 $             1,483,049  

   LIABILITIES 
  Accounts Payable FY18-19  $                     1,968  

OEL SR Advance 
 

35,571  
Episcopal Children's Services 
Payable 1,611,439  
Interest due to OEL 

 
1,748  

Accrued Payroll 
 

4,564  
Accrued Vacation 

 
19,188  

Accrued Employee Benefits 1,011  

   TOTAL LIABILITIES 
 

 $             1,675,489  

   NET ASSETS, Beginning of Year (228,973) 
NET ASSETS, FY18-19 Change 36,533  

   Total Liabilities and Net Assets  $             1,483,049  
  



 

Board Meeting 
September 11, 2019 

 

4 

 
4TH QUARTER PROGRAM UPDATE 
 
T. Dixon reported on the following: 

Coalition Activities:   

• The 2019/2020 Coalition/Episcopal Children’s Services (ECS) Contract was 
completed and approved for this year, requiring special board procedures and 
two-thirds of the board’s vote.   
• All OEL Grant Agreements were completed and approved in time for July 1st 
funding. 
• The Coalition and ECS staff had its semi-annual Open Discussions Lunch 
April 9.  
• The 2019/2020 Coalition’s Anti-Fraud Plan was submitted to OEL’s Office of 
Inspector General, and we received notice August 14 that it was approved. 
• Susan Pettijohn and Chris Spell completed their first “Fiscal Year-end 
Review” during the ECS Fourth Quarter monitoring.   
• My club, The Kiwanis Club of Palatka, hosted its second annual “Toddler 
Fest” June 1 at the Palatka Library.  This year’s theme was “Space”, and the 
Jacksonville Museum of Science and History (MOSH) had a space exploration 
exhibit.  And once again, it was a HUGE hit.  It was estimated that there were 485 
attendees. 

Episcopal Children’s Services (ECS) On-Site Monitoring:  
 
The 2018/2019 Fourth Quarter Monitoring was performed July 29 – August 9, 
2019.  This monitoring included all OEL required “eligibility” criteria for School 
Readiness and attendance/payment validations.  In addition, there were the Data 
Security Systems Updates and the Fiscal Year-end Review. 
 
Due to technical issues with OEL’s new database (EFS “MOD”), School 
Readiness files were reviewed using the strategies and work-around scenarios that 
ECS and the Coalition staff created and documented for OEL.   
 
From this monitoring there was only one compliance issue, which was incorrect 
accounting coding for travel on four of the samples.   
 
The 2019/2020 First Quarter Monitoring is scheduled for November 8 – 
November 22, 2019.  

 
ALL full reports are available upon request. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Board Meeting 
September 11, 2019 

 

5 

4TH QUARTER EARLY LITERACY REPORT 
J. Whitson reported on the following:  
 
Highlights: 
 
RSVP Annual Volunteer Appreciation Luncheon:  May 8th -  The ELC partners with the 
Retired Senior Volunteer Program of St. Johns to place readers into local pre-school classrooms.  
Each year special volunteers are honored for their outstanding work.  An ELC husband and wife 
team, Donna and Bob Stephens were this year’s preschool volunteers of the year.   
 
Toddler/Preschool Fest:  June 2nd - The ELC partnered with the Kiwanis Club of Palatka to put 
on a large Toddler/Preschool festival at the Palatka library on Saturday, June 2nd.  Over 200 
people attended. The day was filled with activities, entertainment, popular characters and every 
child received a FREE book.   
 
Woman Are Fierce:  June 6th and 20th - ELC volunteers were recognized at this yearly event in 
St. Johns County.  The Women are Fierce Organization brings in motivational speakers from all 
over the area and provides network opportunities for woman.   
 
Early Literacy Outreach: 
 
Themed Literacy Programs:  During May, the ELC outreach team put on four Pete the Cat 
literacy programs, four Mother Goose programs and one dinosaur program in area pre-schools.  
These programs always include a story time and activities relating to the theme.  Each child 
receives a FREE book relating to the theme and the teacher receives a bag of resources for their 
classroom.  No programs are scheduled during June and July due to summer break.   
 
Mother Goose Sorority:  Mother Goose (AKA Sandi Dunnavant, outreach assistant) officially 
started the Mother Goose Sorority this quarter.  Four volunteers are currently in training to 
become Mother Goose.  This program is centered on nursery rhymes and teaches the importance 
of rhyming as it pertains to a child’s auditory development. 
Reading Pals:  At the end of each school year, the ELC provides its reading volunteers with 
books that they can give their students as an end of the school year gift.  This also happens at 
Christmas time.  This is just another perk for providers to have a reading volunteer.  Currently 
there are 54 reading volunteers in 44 schools.   
Literacy program planning:  Summer is the time the ELC outreach team plans for the 
upcoming school year and works on developing new programs.  A dinosaur themed program was 
created and will be launched in October of this year.  Several volunteer work days were held to 
put program supplies together and book bags.   
 
EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
Draft minutes of the August 7, 2019 Exec Admin Committee Meeting were provided as an 
informational item.  The following are the items that were up for ratification on the Exec Admin 
Committee  
 Consent Agenda 

1. Ratify Approval of November 7, 2018 Exec/Admin Committee Meeting Minutes* 
2. Ratify Approval of Episcopal Children’s Services 2019/2020 Contract Amendment 

#0001-19* 



 

Board Meeting 
September 11, 2019 

 

6 

3. Ratify Retro-Active Approval of the Voluntary Prekindergarten (VPK) Outreach and 
Awareness and Monitoring Initiative Grant Agreement Between the Office of Early 
Learning (OEL) and the Early Learning Coalition of North Florida* 

4. Ratify Approval of Revisions to the Coalition’s Personnel Policies and Procedures 
Manual* 

5. Ratify Approval of Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures Revisions* 
6. Ratify Approval of Revisions to the Coalition’s Procurement of Commodities and/or 

Contractual Services Policies and Procedures Manual* 
7. Ratify Approval of 2019-20 ELCNF COOP* 

 
 

2. B. Graham motioned for ratification of items 1-7 on the Exec Admin 
Committee Consent agenda, as presented.  J. Stanton seconded the motion.  T. 
Matheny abstained from voting on item #2, memorandum of voting conflict 
attached to minutes.  No Discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

 
NEW/UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 
APPROVAL OF REVISIONS TO THE COALITION’S FINANCIAL POLICIES AND 
PROCEDURES MANUAL* 
 
Revisions: 

 
F102 – Accounting Department 

• Accounting Department now consists of two Finance Managers.  
References throughout the manual have been changed to Finance Managers. 
(policies #F107, F202, F205 – have only this change.) 

 
F109 – Chart of Accounts,  

• Description of Chart of Accounts changed to only include the 5 basic 
account types.  Other Coalition Expense, Pass Thru Payments, and Administrative 
Allocations are expense accounts and excluded as a basic GL account type. 
 

F206 – Cash Receipts and Segregation of Duties,  
• Bank Deposits are made on a weekly basis (instead of daily) and are made 
no less than monthly (instead of weekly). 
• Reconciliation and deposit responsibilities are split between the two 
Finance Managers.  Removed language indicating that the CEO handles or record 
deposits. 
• Removed section about processing online donations through PayPal.  We 
no longer use PayPal for receiving donations. 
 

F207 – Accounts Receivable Management  
• Changed written procedure to align with actual procedures.  This 
coalition’s only receivable account is the account recording expected receipts 
from OEL.   

 



 

Board Meeting 
September 11, 2019 

 

7 

F304 – Charging of Costs to Federal Awards 
• Changed “Allowability of Costs” to “Allowable Costs” 

 
F305 – Accounts Payable Management  

• Changed written procedure to describe modified cash basis, which is 
utilized by the Coalition. 
• Changed references to Check Requests and Check Request Log to 
Purchase Orders and Purchase Request Log. 
• Changed Reconciliation of Accounts Payable procedure to describe the 
reconciliation of the Subrecipient Payable Account.  Since we operate on a 
modified cash basis this is the only significant payable account. 
 

F307 – Cash Disbursements (Check-Writing) Policies 
• Changed vendor payments from weekly to bi-weekly. 
• Changed that “Stop payments” can be done via phone or written 
authorization, but does not require both. 
 

F309 – Payroll and Related Policies  
• Payroll is processed electronically.  All references to distribution of 
payroll checks or check stubs is deleted. 
• Reference to an annual payroll audit is deleted.  A description of monthly 
payroll process is inserted instead of the audit reference. 

F401– Cash and Cash Management  
• Interest payback to OEL occurs annually.  Prior to FY17-18, quarterly 
payments were required.  Procedure changed. 
• Bank Reconciliation procedures are now shared by the 2 Finance 
Managers.  The CEO reviews all bank reconciliations. 
• Bank reconciliations are completed within 45 days of receipt of statement, 
rather than 2 weeks. 
• Transactions that have not cleared the bank are followed up on within 3 
months of transaction date as suggested by OEL guidance.  Previous procedure 
referenced 6 months. 
 

F402 – Capitalized Assets and Inventory Requirements 
• Added instruction that proceeds from inventory items sold are program 
income that originally funded the purchase. 

 
F403 – Prepaid Expenses 

• Description of procedure for handling prepaid expenses changed to reflect 
OEL guidance on the process.   
 

F405 – Leases 
• Deleted references to Rent Abatements and Lease Incentives as this does 
not occur at this Coalition.  Leases payments are recorded on a modified cash 
basis. 

 
F501 – Accrued Liabilities 

• Changed wording of ‘accounting period’ to ‘a fiscal year’. 



 

Board Meeting 
September 11, 2019 

 

8 

• Changed deferred revenue account adjustments will be done annually, 
instead of monthly. 

 
F502 – Net Assets 

• This section deleted as it does not apply to this Coalition. 
 

F601 – Financial Statements 
• Clarified basic financial statements that are internal. 
• Added a listing of financial statements prepared and audited for board 
distribution for each grant period. 
• Deleted ‘Tracking Payments and Projections of Grant Funds section. (This 
was added to policy #F207 – Accounts Receivable Management.) 
 

F701 – Budgeting 
• Changed references from Monthly financial statements to Quarterly 
financial statements. 
 

 
3. B. Graham motioned the approval of the revisions to the Coalition’s Financial 

Policies and Procedures Manual.  T. Little seconded the motion.  No 
Discussion. Motion passed unanimously.  
 

 
APPROVAL OF THE ELC 2019-2020 SECOND PRELIMINARY BUDGET* 
 
This is the second revised draft of the Preliminary budget following the receipt of the funding 
totals from OEL by way of Notice of Award in the beginning of the 2019-2020 fiscal year. 
 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 
 

• If not approved:  The Coalition would not be working under a budget for the portion of 
the year prior to receipt of the Notice of Award funds. 

 
• The Coalition would not be in compliance with policy requiring Board approval. 

 
 

4. B. Graham motioned approval of the ELC 2019-2020 second preliminary 
budget.  T. Little seconded the motion.  No Discussion.  Motion Passed 
unanimously.   
 
 

APPROVAL OF R. WILLIAMS AND T. LITTLE TO ATTEND THE NATIONAL 
SUMMIT ON EDUCATION REFORM (NOVEMBER 20-21, 2019) HELD IN SAN 
DIEGO, CALIFORNIA* 

Hosted by ExcelinEd, the annual National Summit on Education Reform is the nation’s premier 
gathering of education reformers.  It provides state and local policymakers, education leaders and 
advocates with comprehensive information on evolving laws, new trends, successful policies and 
the latest innovations that are transforming education for the 21st century. 



 

Board Meeting 
September 11, 2019 

 

9 

By learning what is working and not working in other states and school districts, attendees leave 
the National Summit armed with the knowledge and networks to advance bold education reform 
in their states.  This uncommon conference annually serves as a catalyst for energizing and 
accelerating the reform movement across the nation. 

 
5. J. Stanton motioned the approval of R. Williams and T. Little to attend the 

National Summit on Education Reform (November 20-21, 2019) held in San 
Diego, California.  B. Graham seconded the motion.    R. Williams and T. 
Little recused themselves from voting.  Memorandum of Voting Conflict is 
attached for both board members.  No discussion.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

 
APPROVAL OF PRIVATE SECTOR BOARD MEMBER KYLE GAMMON*  
 
Kyle Gammon is a partner and CPA at the Accounting Firm of Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC.  He 
is passionate about supporting children, having previously served on the Board for a charter 
school and currently serves on the Board for INK. 
 
Kyle Gammon’s term will be September 2019 to September 2023. 
 

6.  A. Simpson-Gotham motioned the approval of Private Sector Board Member 
Kyle Gammon.  B. Graham seconded the motion.  No discussion.  Motion 
passed unanimously. 
 

 
APPROVAL OF DISPOSAL OF INVENTORY* 
 
Any disposal of property listed on Coalition inventory, must be board approved in order to 
proceed with the removal of any item on the inventory. 

 
Staff is asking permission to dispose of items that are no longer in good working order and 
are listed in Fair, Poor, Obsolete, Scrap Condition for tag numbers: 

 
• Wacom Display SMART, SSID250, ID tag CNBB 39 and ECS 1148, condition 

poor 
• Latitude Dell Laptop E6520, SN JSB5Q1, ID tag 1806 ECS and CNBB 302, condition 

poor 
 

7.   B. Graham motioned to approve the request for disposal of inventory.  J. 
Stanton seconded the motion.  No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
 
 
BOARD MEMBERSHIP REVIEW 
 
R. Cody reviewed upcoming board term dates and overall membership statuses.  No discussion 
or further comments. 



 

Board Meeting 
September 11, 2019 

 

10 

 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS* 
 
By unanimous vote via emailed ballots, the following board members were nominated and 
elected to serve as the Coalition Officers for the 2019-20 fiscal year: 
 

• Chair: Nancy Pearson 
• Vice Chair: Joy Stanton 
• Treasurer: Myrna Allen 
• Secretary:  Aubrie Simpson-Gotham 

 
 
  8.   T. Little motioned to approve the Election of Officers.  B. Graham  
        Seconded the motion.  No Discussion.  Motion passed unanimously.  
 
 
STANDING COMMITTEE DISCUSSION AND SIGN-UP. 
 
An email was sent to all board members prior to the meeting asking for volunteers to serve on 
the Executive Admin Committee.  The committee requires the four elected officers along with an 
additional four Board Members.      
 
Based on the email responses from Board Members, the following is the new Executive 
Administration Committee:  N. Pearson, J. Stanton, R. Williams, T. Little, M. Allen,  T. 
Matheny, Michael Siragusa and A. Simpson-Gotham.  
 
 
CODE OF ETHICS-HANDOUT  
 
The Coalition policy OP202 Code of Ethics was provided in the Board Packet. Board Members 
and staff did not have any questions regarding the policy. All board members and staff in 
attendance signed the acknowledgement of compliance and turned them in.  Any board member 
and/or staff who were not in attendance of today’s meeting will have their Code of Ethics policy 
sent to them for review and signature.  
 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE-HANDOUT 
 
The Coalition policy OP203 Conflict of Interest was provided in the Board Packet. Board 
Members and staff did not have any questions regarding the policy. All board and staff in 
attendance completed and signed the questionnaire portion of the policy and turned them in. Any 
board member and/or staff who were not in attendance of today’s meeting will have their 
Conflict of Interest policy sent to them for review and signature. 
 
 
BOARD ABSENTEEISM LOG- INFORMATIONAL 
 
No Comments.   
 



 

Board Meeting 
September 11, 2019 

 

11 

BOARD COMMENTS 
 
No comments. 
 
 
NEXT MEETINGS 
The next scheduled meetings are as follows: 
 

• Wednesday, November 6, 2019 , 10:30 a.m. – Exec/Admin Committee Conference Call 
Meeting 

• Wednesday, December 4, 2019, 2:00 p.m. –Board Meeting World Golf Village Caddy 
Shack Restaurant. 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT* 
 

9.  B. Graham motioned for adjournment at 11:48a.m.  M. Allen 
                seconded the motion.  No discussion – motion passed unanimously. 

 
 
Minutes Submitted By:  Rhonda Cody, Office Manager 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
Board Meeting  

December 4, 2019 
 

 

V. Staff and Committee Reports 

 

A. CEO Report-VERBAL 
 



 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.  
Board Meeting  

December 4, 2019 
 

 

V. Staff and Committee Reports 

 

B. Finance Manager’s Report 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  















 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.  
Board Meeting  

December 4, 2019 
 

 

V. Staff and Committee Reports 

 

C. 1ST Quarter Program Update 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



  
 

 

 

                                A United Way Agency Funded by the State of Florida                      

2450 Old Moultrie Road, Suite 103 
St. Augustine, FL  32086 

904-342-2267 
www.elcnorthflorida.org 

 

  

MEMORANDUM 

To:  All Board Members 
From:  Tajaro Dixon, Grants and Operations Manager 
Date:  October 30, 2019 
Subject:  2019/2020 First Quarter Program Update and Quality Assurance Activities 
 

Coalition Activities:   

• The ELC staff completed the 2019/2020 Internal Controls Questionnaire (ICQ).  In addition, ECS completes this 
same ICQ each year and their responses are reviewed by ELC staff for any needed follow-up and/or approval. 

• The ELC staff met the October 1 OEL deadline for all the annual items such as the annual report, inventory, 
COOP (Continuation of Operations Plan), Sub-recipient monitoring plan, Fiscal prior year Revenue and Expense 
report and current year Budget. 

• In July, all staff completed their annual review of Anti-Fraud plan, policies and practices. 
• Annual archiving processes have begun. 
• Our ELC has again requested a waiver from OEL for sub-recipient monitoring sampling size requirements this 

year due to the continued issues with the “EFS MOD” database conversion.  We are awaiting their reply.   
 
 

Episcopal Children’s Services (ECS) On-Site Monitoring:  
 
The 2019/2020 First Quarter Monitoring is scheduled for November 8 – November 22, 2019.  This monitoring will 
include all OEL required “eligibility” criteria for School Readiness children, VPK children, and VPK Providers.   In 
addition, there will be a review of personnel files and background screenings. 
 
As we continue to have technical issues with OEL’s new database (“EFS “MOD”), School Readiness files are still 
being reviewed using the strategies and work-around scenarios that ECS and the Coalition staff create, adjust, and 
document for OEL.   
 
(Due to a change in the monitoring schedule cycle for this year, there is not an update to provide as of this date - as 
this monitoring has not yet occurred.)   
 
The 2019/2020 Second Quarter Monitoring is scheduled for February 18 – March 2, 2020.   
 

 
ALL full reports are available upon request. 



 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.  
Board Meeting  

December 4, 2019 
 

 

V. Staff and Committee Reports 

 

D. 1ST Quarter Early Literacy Report 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Early Literacy Outreach Report 
First Quarter 2019-2020 

Completed by Joan Whitson 
 
Highlights: 
 
Kiwanis Florida State Convention:  August 15-17th at the Omni Hotel in Orlando.  I represented 
both the Kiwanis Club of St. Augustine and the ELCNF by attending and presenting a workshop 
about our highly successful Character Breakfast event.   
 
Literacy Outreach: 

Book of the Month:  This is a program the Episcopal Children’s Services education specialists 
use in their targeted centers for the coming year.  Each month they focus their instruction with 
the provider using two books one geared for infants and toddlers and the other for the 4 year 
old child.  They then give the two books each month to that provider to help build up their 
libraries.  The ELC purchased the books for this program.  In addition to this program the ELC 
will help the targeted centers during the year by providing them with one of our themed 
literacy programs. 
 
Baby Bags:  In August volunteers assembled book bags filled with 4-5 board books and a read 
aloud guide for parents.  The bags were given to each ECS county office to hand out to families 
with children ages 0-2.   
 
Volunteer Reading Pals:  Over the summer much work was done improving and organizing our 
volunteer lending libraries.  The goal is for all three of our libraries to have a digital catalog that 
readers can access on line.  They can search for any book by author, theme and will be able to 
see a picture of the book and description. 
 
ELCNF Reading Conference:  September 25th at the Marywood Retreat Center in St. Johns.  
This is an annual event where all of our reading volunteers come together for a day filled with 
special speakers and interactive classes all with the goal of improving their reading.   This year 
the conference was also made available to teachers to obtain CEU’s.  16 teachers took 
advantage of this.   The topics included:  incorporating dramatic play, adding music and 
movement, rhymers are readers, using themes and picking more diverse books.  45 volunteers 
were in attendance.   
 
Themed Literacy Programs:  During the summer we launched a new Ocean themed literacy 
program.  Seven programs were put on three different counties.  The program focuses on 
teaching children facts about ocean life through an interactive story and activity time.  Children 
get to paint sea shells, make their own ocean in a bottle, create sand necklaces and sea life 
visors.  Each child received a free copy of a National Geographic Kids Ocean Creatures book and 
the teachers received a resource bag filled with books and materials to further teach this 
theme.   



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Board Meeting 

December 4, 2019 

 

V. Staff and Committee Reports 

 

E.  Executive Administrative Committee, 
November 6, 2019-Cancelled 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 4, 2019 

 

VI.  New/Unfinished Business  

 

A.  Summary of D. Bell Annual Evaluation- 
HANDOUT 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 
September 19, 2018 

Board Meeting 

DAWN’S 2019 ANNUAL EVALUATION SUMMARY 
 
 

• The evaluation was conducted on September 11, 2019 with Nancy Pearson, 
Theresa Little, Renee Williams, Brian Graham and Joy Stanton serving as 
evaluators.  
 

• Of the total 18 evaluations mailed/handed to the board members, 13 
members completed the evaluation and five board members did not return 
the evaluation.  
 

• Out of a 1 to 5 rating scale, 1 = Unsatisfactory and 5 = Outstanding; Dawn’s 
Overall Rating Score was 4.60 which earned a final rating of “Outstanding”. 

 
• Dawn’s next evaluation period ends September 1, 2020. 

 
• If any Board Member would like to see a copy of the final compiled 

evaluation results, please contact Rhonda Cody. 
 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 4, 2019 

 

VI.  New/Unfinished Business  

 

B.  Approval of NEFEC Lease 2020-2021* 

 

 

*ACTION ITEM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  









































Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 4, 2019 

 

VI.  New/Unfinished Business  

 

C.  Approval of Episcopal Children’s Services 
2019/2020 Contract Amendment #0002-19* 

 

 

*ACTION ITEM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 

DESCRIPTION Episcopal Children’s Services 2019/2020 Contract Amendment #0002-19: 
Reason for 
Recommended Action 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Revisions: 
 

A. Items #1, 2, and 4 were to update the School Readiness budgeted 
amounts per the September 13, 2019 Notice of Award. 

B. Items #2 and 4 were to update the Program Assessment and Preschool 
Development Grant Services (P.D.G.) budgeted amounts per the 
September 30, 2019 Notice of Award. 

C. Item #2, under “Additional School Readiness-Related Programs and 
Funding” was to: 
• Remove the one “Early Learning Florida” contract that has expired. 
• Add the new “Early Learning Florida” contract for 19/20. 
• Update the “School Readiness Program Assessment” project 

section. 
• Update the “Preschool Development Grant Services” project 

section. 
D. Item #3 was to correct language regarding Travel classifications and 

required prior approvals. 
E. Note: In both Attachment 9’s, the yellow-highlighted revision in the far 

right, last column for “Total Non-Slots (Non-Direct)” is a 
CORRECTION.  The wrong amount was entered here for Contract 
Amendment #0001-19, so this is only a correction.   

 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 
 

A. ECS’s contract would not have the correct budgeted amounts for the 
School Readiness program. 

B. ECS’s contract would not have the correct budgeted amounts for the 
Program Assessment and Preschool Development Grant programs. 

C. ECS’s contract section, “Additional School Readiness-Related 
Programs and Funding” would not be up to date nor accurate. 

D. ECS’s contract would not contain needed corrections regarding Travel. 
E. ECS’s SR Budget Attachment 9 would not have a needed dollar 

amount correction. 
 

How the Action will be 
accomplished 

Approval of ECS 2019/2020 amendment #0002-19, and party signatures. 

 



 
 
 
 

1 
 
 
 

Amendment 0002-19 to Primary Services Contract 
Episcopal Children’s Services 

 
 
THIS AMENDMENT, entered into between the Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. hereinafter referred 
to as the Coalition, and Episcopal Children’s Services, hereinafter referred to as the Contractor, amends the 2019-20 
primary services contract as follows: 

 
 

Item # Page # Headings and Text 

1 9 
 

C.  RESOURCE MANAGEMENT (SR) 

  
 

 
Pursuant to the Request for Proposal and the Contractor’s signed response, 
and the fact that this contract is upon a cost-reimbursement method 
of payment, the CONTRACTOR shall be fiscally responsible pursuant to 
the following: 

 
1. BUDGET SURPLUS/DEFICIT:  The Contractor shall serve no fewer 

than 3,800 children with the slot dollars provided under this contract, 
unless the available School Readiness grant funding would not 
financially provide for all 3,800 slots.  Regardless of the total amount 
of funding for slots, the Coalition (through its Sub-Contractors) will 
ensure that no less than 78% of School Readiness grant funds will be 
used for slot funding.  The 78 percent calculation includes direct 
services, applicable Gold Seal OCA expenditures, and performance-
based payment differentials to providers up to the provider’s private 
pay rate, as defined in the most recent version of the OEL Standard 
Codes document, and local match. The slot funding will be expended 
within 1.5% under and 0% over the contracted budget amount, with 
the understanding that the goal is to use 0.75% under. The 
CONTRACTOR further agrees that reimbursements under this contract 
shall be up to, and are capped at the total budgeted amount of funding 
for direct childcare slot funding which is $14,250,795 
$14,734,976. This funding is inclusive of the annual OEL School 
Readiness Grant Award that does not include local match funds, and 
is based on availability of funds.  If county allocations are 
reduced at the state level, contracts will be amended 
accordingly. Gold Seal payments are subject to adjustments 
due to budget constraints.  Additionally, the Contractor shall be 
responsible for actively soliciting and obtaining local match funds for 
children in School Readiness Programs to be used only for slots.   
 

2 21 VII. Method of Payment (SR) 
   

This is a cost-reimbursement contract.  The Coalition shall pay the contractor for 
the delivery of service provided in accordance with the terms of this contract for a 
total dollar amount up to and not to exceed $16,946,880 $17,431,061.  
This funding is inclusive of the annual OEL School Readiness Grant Award 
which does not include local match funds, and is based on availability of 
funds. If county allocations are reduced at the state level, contracts will 



 
 
 
 

2 
 
 
 

be amended accordingly. Up to and no more than $373,411 (97BBA) may be 
allocated to adminsitrative expenditures.  Local match will be reimbursed 
based on funding from match raised from local grants up to the amount 
earned or the amount of the local grants, whichever is less. 
 
Additional School Readiness-Related Programs and Funding: 
 

The following programs’ funding is exclusive of the annual OEL School 
Readiness Grant Award funding.  Contractor reimbursements will be 
based on all provisions as set forth in the individual contracts and/or OEL 
Grant Agreements. 
 
Early Learning Florida  
AND, the Coalition shall pay the contractor for the delivery of service 
provided in accordance with the terms and conditions of OEL’s “Early 
Learning Florida Contracts” [in cooperation with The University of 
Florida Board of Trustees, a public body corporate of the State of Florida 
for the benefit of its Lastinger Center for Learning (“University”)] with the 
Coalition:  
 

#SR974 (effective dates 01/04/19 – 08/31/19) for a total dollar 
amount up to and not to exceed $22,500. 

 
To support the implementation of Early Learning Florida 
courses for the Coalition’s Child Care Providers 
(Effective dates 09/01/19 – 08/31/20) for a total dollar amount up to     
and not to exceed $12,000. 

 
 
Contractor will observe and meet the terms of OEL’s Grant Agreement 
regarding conditions of the 2019/2020 agreement for components of 
House Bill 1091, specifically Exhibit 2, Parts B33-B.35 [definitions for 
Quality Improvement Plan, Quality Performance System (QPS), and Child 
Assessments], Part C.5.3.1 (Conducting Program Assessments and 
Determining SR Provider Eligibility), Part C.5.7 (Quality Improvement Plan 
Management), and Part C.5.8 (Child Assessment Management). 
 
School Readiness Program Assessment 
Contractor shall provide program assessments on School Readiness 
providers.  These program assessments will be conducted in accordance 
with OEL Program Guidance 420.02 – Program Assessment and 250.01 – 
Other Cost Accumulators, and for a total dollar amount up to and not 
to exceed $267,900 $217,598. 
 
Preschool Development Grant Services (P.D.G.) 
This is a federal grant designed to fund states to conduct a 
comprehensive statewide birth through five needs assessment followed 
by in-depth strategic planning, while enhancing parent choice and 
expanding the current mixed delivery system consisting of a wide range 
of provider types and settings. 
 



 
 
 
 

3 
 
 
 

Contractor must complete and submit a PDG Plan for Implementation of 
Child Assessment Best Practices to OEL for review and approval. 
Contractor must submit the ELC board approved PDG Plan to the Office of 
Early Learning no later than close of business July 31, 2019.  
 
Best practices for supporting child assessment implementation are 
outlined in OEL Program Guidance 420.02 Attachment C – School 
Readiness Child Assessment Guide.  To the extent possible, each 
coalition’s plan for supporting child assessment implementation should 
align to these best practices.   
 
To the extent possible, Contractor will complete all targets and goals of 
the plan.  Contractor may not exceed the PDG Plan total dollar amount 
of $115,526 $132,424. 

 
3 22 Travel and Entertainment 
   

In addition, the Contractor agrees that entertainment costs are unallowable 
and all travel must be pre-approved by another Board Member or the 
Contractor’s Board of Directors (for agency head and board members) and by 
the Contractor’s agency head (for all employees) prior to travel taking place.  
ALL TRAVEL is defined as both in-state (local and overnight) in-state local, in-
state overnight, and all out-of-state travel,. and And, such costs shall be 
reimbursed at the standard travel reimbursement rates established in section 
112.061, F.S. and per the regulations of OEL Program Guidance 240.10 – 
Travel and DFS-approved travel forms of the Florida Department of Financial 
Services and Florida Department of Education.  In addition, all out-of-state 
travel must be pre-approved by another Board Member or the Contractor’s 
Board of Directors prior to travel taking place. 
 

4 69-70 Attachment 9 School Readiness Budget 
   

(Attached, Pages 4-5 show the deletions, and pages 6-7 show the additions.  
Pages 6-7 replaces original contract attachment and is incorporated as part of 
this amendment.) 
 

  END OF AMENDMENTS 
  

  



 
 
 
 

4 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 9 
SCHOOL READINESS BUDGET 

State of Florida Notice of Award No. EL430 
DUNS # 130220796 

CFDA# / Name Federal Award # 
93.558 / TANF and MOE G1901FLTANF (21.95%) 

93.575 / CCDF Discretionary G1901FLCCDD (50.54%) 
93.596 / CCDF Mandatory   G1901FLCCDF (5.65%) 

93.596 / CCDF Matching and MOE G1901FLCCDM (21.79%) 

93.667 / SSBG G1901FLS0SR (0.07%) 

 
 

Grand Total 100% 
 

Description OCA 

      

 ECS   Coalition  Total ECS 
and ELC  Dollar   Dollar 

 Amounts Amounts   
      

General Administration 97BBA, 97FIR, 
97LCA $373,411 $522,915  $896,326  

Non-direct Services 97BBD $288,026   $288,026 
Systems 97SYS       

Eligibility Determination 97BDE $628,518   $628,518 

Quality  

97QOO, 
97QHS, 97QCS, 
97QST, 97QCR, 
97QAS, 97QTA, 
97QPD, 97QPT  

$651,625 $431,733  $1,083,358  

Infant & Toddler Services 97INT, 97ICR, 
97IAS, 97ICS  $362,017 $25,000  $387,017  

Inclusion 97QIN $98,028   $98,028 
Resource & Referral 97Q14 $294,460   $294,460 
Total Non-Slots  (Non-Direct) $2,696,085 $979,648  $3,943,836  

Gold Seal Payments  97GSD $600,000  $600,000  

SR Matching Funding $151,008  $151,008 
Slots $13,499,787   $13,499,787 

Total Slots  (Direct Services) $14,250,795   $14,250,795 

Grand Totals  $16,946,880 $979,648 $17,926,528  

     NOA Total 



 
 
 
 

5 
 
 
 

Supplemental Contracts  
(Exclusive of OEL School Readiness Grant Award Funding) 

 
 
Early Learning Florida (through the University of Florida Lastinger 
Center) 
Contract #SR974 (eff dates 01/04/19-08/31/19) Total 
 

 
 
 

$22,500 

 
Preschool Development Grant (PDG) 
 
General Administration (OCA – SRPAS) 
 
Total Allocation 
 

 
 
 

$5,776 
 

$115,526 

 
SR Program Assessment (EL439)  
 
CFDA# 93.575/CCDF, Federal Award No. G1802FLCCDF 100% funding 
 
For General Administration of CLASS Assessments (OCA - SRPAS) 
 
Total (total dollar amount up to and not to exceed) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$267,900 

 
 

 
 

 

  



 
 
 
 

6 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 9 
SCHOOL READINESS BUDGET  

State of Florida Notice of Award No. EL430 
DUNS # 130220796 

CFDA# / Name Federal Award # 
93.558 / TANF and MOE G1901FLTANF (21.95%) 

93.575 / CCDF Discretionary G1901FLCCDD (50.54%) 
93.596 / CCDF Mandatory   G1901FLCCDF (5.65%) 

93.596 / CCDF Matching and MOE G1901FLCCDM (21.79%) 

93.667 / SSBG G1901FLS0SR (0.07%) 

 
 

Grand Total 100% 
 

Description OCA 

      

 ECS   Coalition  Total ECS 
and ELC  Dollar   Dollar 

 Amounts Amounts   
      

General Administration 97BBA, 97FIR, 
97LCA $373,411 $522,915  $896,326  

Non-direct Services 97BBD $288,026   $288,026 
Systems 97SYS       

Eligibility Determination 97BDE $628,518   $628,518 

Quality  

97QOO, 
97QHS, 97QCS, 
97QST, 97QCR, 
97QAS, 97QTA, 
97QPD, 97QPT  

$651,625 $431,733  $1,083,358  

Infant & Toddler Services 97INT, 97ICR, 
97IAS, 97ICS  $362,017 $25,000  $387,017  

Inclusion 97QIN $98,028   $98,028 
Resource & Referral 97Q14 $294,460   $294,460 
Total Non-Slots  (Non-Direct) $2,696,085 $979,648  $3,675,733  

Gold Seal Payments  97GSD $600,000  $600,000 

Performance Funding QPIIPD,QPICA, 
QPIPQ, QPICQ $484,181  $484,181 

SR Matching Funding $151,008  $151,008 
Slots $13,499,787   $13,499,787 

Total Slots  (Direct Services) $14,734,976   $14,734,976 

Grand Totals  $17,431,061 $979,648 $18,410,709  

     NOA Total 



 
 
 
 

7 
 
 
 

Supplemental Contracts  
(Exclusive of OEL School Readiness Grant Award Funding) 

 
 
Early Learning Florida (through the University of Florida Lastinger 
Center) 

To support the implementation of Early Learning Florida 
courses for the Coalition’s Child Care Providers 
(Effective dates 09/01/19 – 08/31/20) for a total dollar amount up to     
and not to exceed $12,000. 

 

 
 
 
 

$12,000 

Preschool Development Grant (PDG) (EL430) 
 
CFDA# 93.434/ESSA Preschool Development Grants Birth Through Five, 
Federal Award No. 9OTP0004–100% funding 

Targeted Funds and Restrictions: 
General Administration (no more than 5%) 
Preschool Development Stipends 

  
Total Allocation 

 
 
 
 
 

$6,621 
$16,898 

 
$132,424 

SR Program Assessment (EL430)  
 
CFDA# 93.575/CCDF, Federal Award No. G1902FLCCDF–100% funding 
For General Administration of CLASS Assessments (OCA - SRPAS) 
 

Total (total dollar amount up to and not to exceed) 

 
 
 
 
 

$217,598 

 
  



 
 
 
 

8 
 
 
 

THIS AMENDMENT shall begin on December 4, 2019, or the date, on which the amendment has been signed by both 
parties, whichever is later. 

All provisions in the contract and any attachments thereto in conflict with this amendment shall be and are hereby changed to 
conform to this amendment. 

All provisions not in conflict with this amendment are still in effect and are to be performed at the level specified in the 
contract. 

This amendment is hereby made a part of the contract. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this  8   page amendment to be executed by their officials thereunto 
duly authorized. 

 

                                                                     
EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF   EPISCOPAL CHILDREN’S SERVICES, 
NORTH FLORIDA     INC.  
 
 
 
NAME        NAME        
 
TITLE        TITLE        
 
SIGNED       SIGNED       
 
DATE        DATE        

 
 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 4, 2019 

 

VI.  New/Unfinished Business  

 

D.  Retro Active Approval (effective 09/01/2019) 
of ELC of North Florida and the University of 

Florida/Lastinger Center Early Learning Florida 
Contract effective 09/01/19-08/31/20* 

 

 

*ACTION ITEM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 

DESCRIPTION RETRO ACTIVE Approval (effective 09/01/19) 
ELC of North Florida and the University of Florida/Lastinger 
Center Early Learning Florida Contract effective 09/01/19 – 
08/31/20 

Reason for Recommended Action  
This Contract for Services is made and entered into by and 
between The University of Florida Board of Trustees (a public 
body corporate of the State of Florida for the benefit of its 
Lastinger Center for Learning) and the ELC of North Florida.  
 
 
THIS CONTRACT is to support the implementation of Early 
Learning Florida courses (e.g., online only, online with 
Community of Practice (CoP) Facilitation, and online with 
Technical Assistance (TA) Coaching) that aligns with quality 
improvement goals/initiatives, for the Coalition’s Child Care 
Providers.  
 
The total contract is not to exceed $12,000. 
 
 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 
 

• The Coalition would not be able to extend this 
professional development opportunity to the child care 
providers in the Coalition’s service area. 
 

How the Action will be accomplished RETRO ACTIVE Approval (effective 09/01/19) 
of this Contract and party signatures. 

 





Wendy Byrne

Procurement Agent II
9/27/19















Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 4, 2019 

 

VI.  New/Unfinished Business  

 

E.  Retro Active Approval (effective 09/01/2019) 
of ELC of North Florida-- the University of 

Florida/Lastinger Center and Episcopal 
Children’s Services Early Learning Florida 

Contract effective 09/01/19-08/31/20* 

 

 

*ACTION ITEM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 4, 2019 

  



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 

DESCRIPTION RETRO ACTIVE Approval (effective 09/01/19) 
ELC of North Florida - University of Florida/Lastinger Center 
and Episcopal Children’s Services  
Early Learning Florida Contract effective 09/01/19 – 08/31/20 

Reason for Recommended Action  
(This Contract and dollar amount was also added to ECS’s 
2019/2020 primary contract with amendment #2.) 
 
 
THIS CONTRACT is to support the implementation of Early 
Learning Florida courses (e.g., online only, online with 
Community of Practice (CoP) Facilitation, and online with 
Technical Assistance (TA) Coaching) that aligns with quality 
improvement goals/initiatives, for the Coalition’s Child Care 
Providers.  
 
The total contract is not to exceed $12,000. 
 
 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 
 

• The Coalition would not be able to extend this 
professional development opportunity to the child care 
providers in the Coalition’s service area (through ECS). 
 

How the Action will be accomplished RETRO ACTIVE Approval (effective 09/01/19) 
of this Contract and party signatures. 

 



1 of 8 University of Florida Contract for Services v.2019.02  

 

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
 

This Contract for Services (this “Contract”) is made and entered into as of this 1st day of 
September, 2019, by and between the Early Learning Coalition of North Florida (“ELC”), and 
Episcopal Children’s Services (“Vendor”) in cooperation with the University of Florida Board of 
Trustees, a public body corporate of the State of Florida, on behalf and for the benefit of the University 
of Florida (“University”),  collectively the “Parties.” 

 
University hereby engages Vendor to provide the Services (hereinafter defined), and Vendor hereby 

accepts such engagement, on the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract. 
 

1. Services. Vendor shall perform the services described on Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference (the “Services”). All Services shall   be performed in a timely, diligent and 
professional manner, consistent with the best practices of Vendor’s industry. 

 
2. Compensation and Payment. University shall pay Vendor for the Services in accordance 

with Exhibit A, a total amount not to exceed the total set forth in Exhibit A. Vendor shall not be entitled to 
any other fees, reimbursements or compensation under this Contract, unless mutually agreed to in writing 
and executed by both Parties, for additional services. Vendor shall be responsible for the payment of all 
general excise taxes, income taxes and any other taxes required to be paid to federal, state and local taxing 
authorities with respect to any fees or other amounts paid to Vendor. Payment shall be made within thirty 
(30) days of satisfactory completion of the Services and presentation of a properly completed invoice. 

 
3. Addresses for Notices. All Notices under this Contract shall be made in writing and 

addressed to the following: 
 

University: ELC: 
Lastinger Center for Learning Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 
2-68 Norman Hall 2450 Old Moultrie Road 
PO Box 117052 Suite 103 
Gainesville, FL 32611 St. Augustine, FL 32086 

Attention: Dr. Philip Poekert Attention: Susan Pettijohn 
Phone: (352) 273-4103 Phone: (904) 342-2267 
Cell: Cell: 
Fax: (352) 392-3505 Fax: (904) 342-2268 
Email: poekert@coe.ufl.edu Email: spettijohn@elcnorthflorida.org 

 
 

4. Standard Terms. The standard terms and conditions of this Contract are set forth on 
Exhibit B, Standard Terms, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. All capitalized terms, unless 
otherwise defined herein, shall have the meanings given to them in the Standard Terms. In the event of a 
conflict between the terms contained herein and the Standard Terms, the Standard Terms shall prevail. 

 
5. Term. The term of this Contract begins on the day entered above and continues until 

Services are completed to the University’s satisfaction and final payment is made or the Contract is 
terminated in accordance with section 10 of Exhibit B. 

 

[Signature Page to follow] 

mailto:poekert@coe.ufl.edu
mailto:spettijohn@elcnorthflorida.org


2 of 8 University of Florida Contract for Services v.2019.02  

SIGNATURE PAGE TO CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Contract as of the date first set forth above. 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida (ELC): Episcopal Children’s Services (VENDOR): 

Signature:  Signature:    
 

Name:  Name:    
 

Title:  Title:    
 

Date:  Date:    



3 of 8 University of Florida Contract for Services v.2019.02  

EXHIBIT A 
 

1. Scope of Services (Section 1). 
 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida (“ELC”) and Episcopal Children’s Services (“Vendor”) 
agrees to support the implementation of Early Learning Florida and provide the University of Florida, 
Lastinger Center for Learning (“University”) with the following support, services, and/or materials: 

 
I. Identify two Early Learning Florida liaisons between Vendor and University: 

 
A. An Administrative liaison who is authorized to invoice, collect and maintain a record of W-9 

forms, distribute and certify payment of Early Learning Florida stipends for practitioners. 
 

B. A Program/Professional Development liaison who will lead the development of a local 
implementation plan for Early Learning Florida courses (e.g., online only, online with 
Community of Practice (CoP) Facilitation, and online with Technical Assistance (TA) 
Coaching) that aligns with the Contractor quality improvement goals/initiatives. 

 
II. Recruit Centers and Family Child Care Homes to enroll in Early Learning Florida courses; participating 

programs must serve young children birth to five years of age and have either an active school readiness 
contract or VPK contract. 

 
A. Distribute the electronic Early Learning Florida registration flyer to selected 

Administrators/Directors of Centers and Family Child Care Homes to participate in Early 
Learning Florida 

 
B. Establish criteria and select eligible Centers and Family Child Care Homes 

 
C. Provide University with names and email addresses of Center Directors and Family Child 

Care homes selected. 
 

D. Provide University with names and email addresses of participants from selected Centers and 
Family Child Care Homes who will enroll in Early Learning Florida courses. 

 
III. Select Early Learning Florida courses that support local quality improvement goals. 

 
A. Hosting or Statewide Course Seats: Identify the courses and model (e.g., online only, online 

with CoP Facilitation, or online with TA Coaching) of each course selected that will be 
available to the Centers and Family Child Care Homes. 

 
1. Assign practitioners from selected Centers and Family Child Care Homes to the 

courses and models that best meet their professional development needs. 
 

B. Practitioner Direct Enrollment: Provide the link and/or flyer for participants to direct enroll 
into courses from Early Learning Florida online course catalog 

 
IV. Maintain a list of all staff or affiliated partners who completed the CoP Facilitation and TA Coaching 

Institutes. 
 

A. Assign a qualified CoP Facilitator or TA Coach who has completed the appropriate 
University training to each section and provide this information to the University. 

 
V. Identify the location for CoP Facilitation meetings and the location of centers/homes where TA 

coaching will take place and provide this information to the University. 
 

VI. Ensure administrative support by staff assigned to support Early Learning Florida implementation (e.g., 
providing time for planning, coordinating, and collaborating with staff and local partners to support 
Early Learning Florida implementation; sharing information about Early Learning Florida with Centers 
and Family Child Care Homes providing school readiness services; completing required documentation 



4 of 8 University of Florida Contract for Services v.2019.02  

of CoP sessions and coaching; submitting timely invoices) 
 

VII. Collect and provide University with documentation on Early Learning Florida CoP meetings and TA 
Coaching sessions (e.g., coaching logs, CoP agendas, sign-in sheets). 

 
 

VIII. Provide regular feedback to University on application, registration/enrollment process, courses, CoP 
and TA Coaching support, learning management system, and other elements of Early Learning 
Florida to meet the professional development needs of practitioners, CoP Facilitators, and TA 
Coaches. 

 
IX. Support evaluation of Early Learning Florida through providing existing data (e.g., demographic 

information, existing CLASS scores) and/or facilitating original data collection, including focus 
groups, as needed. 

 
X. Distribute information (e.g., brochures, flyers, announcements) on Early Learning Florida. 

 
XI. Complete timely invoicing for practitioner stipends and CoP facilitation and TA coaching. Provide 

timely payment of individual stipends to practitioners who attain mastery in each course. 
 

A. Maintain accurate and detailed financial records 
 

B. Submit appropriate invoicing documentation and written confirmation of payment per 
University invoicing procedures 

 
 

35. Term (Section 2). The term of this contract shall begin on September 1, 2019 and terminate on August 31, 
2020. 

 
36. Compensation and Payment (Section 3). 

 

The Vendor shall receive stipends as detailed in the Payment Schedule below: 
 

Payment Schedule 
 

 
Description Unit Cost Evidence of Completion 

Practitioners - Online Only $125/practitioner achieving course mastery Copy of General Ledger 

ELC Admin $35/practitioner enrolled Number enrolled via LMS 
 

Total Contract not to exceed Twelve Thousand Dollars ($12,000.00). 
 

The Vendor must provide written confirmation that stipends were distributed to practitioners who attain 
mastery in each course. The Vendor must also provide documentation that CoP Facilitation and/or TA 
Coaching was provided. The Vendor agrees that the money received can only be used for the purpose 
described under this section. Should the Vendor be unable to distribute the stipend to the practitioner, the 
undistributed stipend funds must be returned to the University of Florida, Lastinger Center for Learning 
via check. Check must be made payable to the University of Florida and mailed to the address for 
University under Notices (Section 3). Funds must be received no later than August 31, 2020. 



5 of 8 University of Florida Contract for Services v.2019.02  

EXHIBIT B 
 

University of Florida 
Standard Terms and Conditions 

 
These Standard Terms and Conditions (the “Terms”) are hereby attached to the Contract, together with any invoices, attachments, 
appendices, exhibits, specifications, drawings, notes, instructions and other information, whether physically attached or otherwise issued in 
connection therewith (collectively, the “Agreement”), constitutes the entire and exclusive agreement between The University of Florida Board 
of Trustees (“UF”) and the vendor identified in the Agreement (the “Vendor”). UF’s approval and acceptance of the Agreement is conditioned 
on Vendor‘s agreement that any terms different from or in addition to these Terms, whether communicated orally or contained in any 
confirmation, invoice, acknowledgement, release, acceptance or other written correspondence, irrespective of the timing, shall not form a 
part of the Agreement, even if Vendor purports to condition its acceptance of these Terms on UF’s agreement to such different or additional 
terms. Vendor’s electronic acceptance, receipt of payment, acknowledgement of these Terms, or commencement of performance constitutes 
Vendor’s acceptance of these Terms. If any discrepancy, difference or conflict exists between the various provisions of these Terms and the 
Agreement, these Terms shall control. 

 
1. PAYMENT. Vendor shall submit bills for compensation for goods, services or expenses in sufficient detail for a pre-and post- 
audit; payment procedures and invoice requirements are available on UFs Disbursement Services website. If UF does not issue payment 
within 30 days of receipt of a proper invoice, UF may pay to Vendor, an interest penalty at the rate established pursuant to §55.03(1) Fla. 
Stat. if the interest exceeds one dollar ($1.00). The foregoing provisions apply only to undisputed amounts for which payment has been 
authorized by UF. Vendors experiencing payment problems may contact University Disbursements at (352) 392-1241. UF may make 
payments to Vendor via the University’s EFT/ACH or ePayables payment process. Vendor shall provide the necessary information to UF 
upon request. If Vendor is making payment to UF, Vendor shall pay timely and not offset any amounts or be cause for termination. 
2. TAXES. UF is tax-exempt and therefore is not obligated to pay sales, use and excise taxes. A copy of UF’s Certificate of  
Exemption is available from the UF website. Vendor is responsible for applicable taxes under the Agreement. 
3. VENDOR STATUS. Vendor will supply UF with a complete vendor application and W-9 or W8-BC (Foreign Vendor); if Vendor 
fails to supply UF with a complete and accurate W-9 or W8-BC, the invoice will be deemed insufficient for payment until such information 
has been provided. 
4. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS. UF’s performance and obligation to pay under the Agreement is contingent upon an annual 
appropriation by the Legislature. 
5. AUDIT & RECORD KEEPING. Vendor will cooperate with UF and shall provide specific records and/or access to all of the 
Vendor’s records related to the Agreement. Vendor agrees to retain all records relating to the Agreement during the term and for a period 
of three (3) years thereafter, or for the period required by law, whichever is greater, and to make those records available at all reasonable 
times for investigation, inspection and/or audit by UF and/or the State of Florida Auditor General. In connection with an inspection or audit, 
the records shall be provided at a location designated by UF upon reasonable notice to UF. UF will provide Vendor with reasonable notice 
of the need for such. 
6. TRAVEL. Vendor shall not charge UF for any travel expenses, meals, and lodging unless expressly authorized in the Agreement. 
To the extent that UF is responsible for paying for Vendor’s travel expenses, meals and lodging, such travel expenses shall be paid in 
accordance with Florida Statutes §112.061, and UF’s Travel Directives and Procedures, and only to the extent such expenses are supported 
by written, itemized and paid invoices submitted by Vendor to UF. Any expenses in excess of the amounts prescribed shall be borne by 
Vendor. 
7. INDEMNITY. Nothing in the Agreement shall be construed as UF's indemnification of the Vendor or as a waiver of sovereign 
immunity as set forth and limited by Florida Statutes §768.28. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Vendor shall indemnify, defend, protect, 
and hold harmless University of Florida, the UF Board of Trustees, the Florida Board of Governors, the State of Florida and their respective 
trustees, officers, agents, employees, and their respective successors and assigns (each an “Indemnitee”, and collectively, the 
“Indemnitees”) for, from and against all fines, fees, demands, suits, claims, losses, liabilities, damages, lawsuits, royalties, actions, 
proceedings, arbitrations, taxes, penalties, or interest, associated auditing and legal expenses, and other costs incurred by Indemnitee(s) 
(including reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees) (“Indemnified Claims”) arising from Vendor’s provision of services, negligence, 
misrepresentation or breach of any representation, warranty, obligation, or covenant of the Agreement. Such Indemnified Claims shall 
include, without limitation, all direct, actual, general, special, and consequential damages. This provision shall survive the expiration or 
earlier termination of the Agreement. 
8. ASSUMPTION OF RISK. Each party hereby assumes any and all risk of personal injury and property damage attributable to the 
acts or omissions of that party and the officers, employees, and agents thereof. Vendor also assumes such risk with respect to the acts or 
omissions of Vendor’s subcontractors or persons otherwise acting or engaged to act at the instance of Vendor in furtherance of Vendor 
fulfilling its obligations in the Agreement. UF is not liable for the acts of third parties or the consequences of the acts of third parties. 
9. INFRINGEMENT. Vendor represents that any goods or services furnished or provided to UF, if any, will not infringe upon or 
violate any patent, copyright, trademark, trade secret, or any other proprietary right of any third party. Vendor will, at its own expense, defend 
any suit brought against UF and will indemnify UF against an award of damages and costs made against UF by a settlement or final judgment 
of a court that is based on a claim that the use of the Vendor’s goods or services by UF infringes a trademark or copyright of a third party; 
provided that UF notifies Vendor in writing of the suit or any claim of infringement within 20 days after receiving notice thereof. Such defense 
and indemnity shall survive expiration or earlier termination of the Agreement. 
10. TERMINATION. The Agreement may be terminated by UF by written notice to Vendor of such intent to terminate at least ten 
(10) days prior to the effective date of such termination. UF may, upon five (5) days’ written notice to Vendor setting forth with specificity the 
basis for the termination, terminate the Agreement for Cause (as hereinafter defined). For purposes of the Agreement, “Cause” is defined 
as Vendor’s failure to perform the services within the time specified or to the reasonable satisfaction of the University, or Vendor’s failure to 
adhere to any terms of the Agreement. If the Agreement is terminated, UF shall only be liable for payment of goods received and services 
rendered prior to the date of termination and accepted by UF. 
11. INSURANCE. UF, as a public body corporate entity, warrants and represents that it is self- funded for liability insurance, with 
said protection being applicable to officers, employees, servants, and agents while acting within the scope of their employment by UF, and 
will provide its Certificate of Insurance upon request; UF is not required to obtain additional insurance for the Agreement. 
a) Vendor shall have and maintain the types and amounts of insurance that, at minimum, will cover the Vendor’s (or subcontractor's) 

exposure in performing the Agreement and at UF’s request, name UF as additional insured on the Vendor’s policies. If Vendor is 
required to obtain specific insurance under paragraph 49 of these Terms, then the policy must carry an endorsement to provide 
thirty (30) days prior written notice to UF in the event of cancellation or reduction in coverage or amount. In the event the Vendor’s 
insurance carrier refuses to provide an endorsement to provide thirty (30) days prior written notice to UF, then the Vendor 

http://www.fa.ufl.edu/departments/university-disbursement-services/
http://www.fa.ufl.edu/departments/university-disbursement-services/
http://www.fa.ufl.edu/wp-content/uploads/disbursements/fa-pds-cce.pdf
http://www.fa.ufl.edu/wp-content/uploads/disbursements/fa-pds-cce.pdf
http://www.fa.ufl.edu/wp-content/uploads/disbursements/fa-pds-cce.pdf
http://www.fa.ufl.edu/wp-content/uploads/disbursements/fa-pds-cce.pdf
http://www.fa.ufl.edu/departments/university-disbursement-services/vendors/
http://www.fa.ufl.edu/directives-and-procedures/travel/


6 of 8 University of Florida Contract for Services v.2019.02  

will be required to provide thirty (30) days prior written notice to UF in the event of cancellation or reduction in the coverage or amount 
and secure any new insurance as required to comply with the Agreement to ensure continuous coverage. If the Vendor fails to secure 
and maintain insurance policies complying with the provisions of the Agreement, UF may terminate the Agreement. Vendor shall do 
nothing that will adversely affect UF, in any way, including increasing risks, insurance premiums or liability. In addition to the insurance 
required to be obtained and maintained by the Vendor, if the Vendor assigns any portion of the duties under the Agreement in 
accordance with the terms thereof, each subcontractor or assignee is required to purchase and maintain insurance coverage that 
adequately covers each subcontractor’s or assignee’s exposure based on the type of services they are providing in connection with 
the Agreement. UF reserves the right to cancel any award made or cancel the Agreement if Vendor fails to supply and/or maintain the 
required coverage. Vendor’s procuring of the required insurance shall not relieve the Vendor of any obligation or liability assumed 
under the Agreement, including specifically the indemnity obligations. The Vendor may carry, at his own expense, such additional 
insurance, as Vendor deems necessary. The Vendor shall assist and cooperate in every manner possible in connection with the 
adjustment of all claims arising out of Vendor’s operations within the scope provided for under the Agreement, and shall cooperate in 
all litigated claims and demands, arising from said operations, which its insurance carrier or carriers are requested to respond. 

1. ADVERTISING OR PUBLICATION. Neither Vendor nor any of its subcontractors or affiliates shall cause or allow the name of 
UF or any UF logo or mark (or any variation thereof), or that of any of its schools, departments, or employees to be used in any advertising 
or promotional literature, electronic or otherwise, or in any publication whatsoever, without the prior written approval of UF. Except with the 
prior written consent of the other party, no party shall make any press or media announcement concerning the Agreement. In the case of 
UF, consent must be provided by its Office of Strategic Communications and Marketing. 
2. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES. Vendor is an independent contractor, and neither Vendor nor Vendor’s employees, agents, 
or other representatives shall be considered UF employees or agents. Vendor is retained by UF only for those purposes and to the extent 
set forth in the Agreement. 
3. PROHIBITIONS. Vendor is prohibited from (a) incurring any debt on behalf of UF; (b) entering into any contract, arrangement, 
or transaction which binds UF to any extent or creates any obligation on UF; or (c) utilizing UF’s name, credit, reputation, good-will, 
resources, or assets for any purpose. 
4. GOVERNING LAW. The Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Florida without regards to any conflicts of law 
principles. Venue for all actions or proceedings arising in connection with the Agreement shall be tried and litigated exclusively in the state 
courts located in Alachua County, Florida. 
5. DELETION. Any term and/or condition in the Agreement on the following subject matters are hereby deleted and declared null 
and void: (a) Grants of exclusivity by UF to the Vendor; (b) Restrictions on the hiring of the Vendor’s employees; (c) Automatic renewals or 
extensions of the term of the Agreement; (d) Limitation of time to bring suit; (e) Limitation of the Vendor’s liability; (f) Indemnification of the 
Vendor by UF; (g) Attorney’s and collection fees provisions; and (h) Mediation and arbitration provisions. 
6. NON-WAIVER. Except as otherwise provided in the Agreement, failure by UF to insist on strict performance of any provision of 
the Agreement, complain of any action, non-action, or default of the Vendor, or to exercise any right or privilege, shall not constitute a waiver 
of UF’s rights hereunder. 
7. ASSIGNMENT. The Agreement may not be assigned, whether by operation of law or otherwise, subcontracted or modified by 
either party except as agreed to in writing and signed by the Parties, and the Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties’ successors and 
assigns. 
8. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. The Agreement does not and is not intended to confer any rights or remedies upon any person 
other than the parties to the Agreement. 
9. ACCESS TO WORK. If applicable, UF shall at all times have access to review the ongoing work of Vendor for purposes of 
inspecting the same and determining that the Vendor's performance is in accordance with the terms of theAgreement. 
10. OWNERSHIP OF WORKS. UF shall retain all rights, title and interest in any content, data or other intellectual property owned 
or supplied by UF. 
11. CONFIDENTIALITY/PRIVACY. Vendor acknowledges and agrees that any and all documents, materials and information 
furnished to the Vendor by UF or its affiliates in connection with the Agreement (the “Confidential Information”) are and shall remain at all 
times proprietary, and the sole property of UF. Vendor shall not disclose Confidential Information to third parties unless it obtains UF’s prior 
written consent prior to such disclosure. Vendor shall at all times comply with any and all applicable state and federal laws governing the 
use and/or safe-keeping of Confidential Information and/or any Personally Identifiable Information (“PII”), as the term may be defined by 
state or federal law, including, but not limited to, The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), the Gramm-Leach Bliley Act, the 
Federal Trade Commission’s Red Flags Rule (which implements Section 114 of the Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act of 2003), 
and The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), and Vendor shall obtain, in advance, all necessary permissions and 
consents in regards to its collection and/or receipt of any such Confidential Information or PII. In the event that UF will share with Vendor or 
provides access to Vendor of any Protected Health Information (“PHI”), as that term is defined by state or federal law, in order to perform the 
Agreement, UF and Vendor shall enter into a separate business associate agreement which will govern the use of the PHI (in lieu of this 
provision). Vendor agrees that, upon request from UF or upon the termination or expiration of the Agreement, Vendor shall return to UF, 
and shall erase, destroy, and render unreadable as applicable, all Confidential Information, PII and PHI from all files, hard drives, computer 
or network systems, backup systems, cloud storing services or from any other location containing any such information, and certify in writing 
to UF that these actions have been completed within thirty (30) days of the termination or expiration of the Agreement or within seven (7) 
days of the request of UF, whichever shall come first. In the event of a breach of any of Vendor's obligations herein, Vendor agrees to 
indemnify, hold harmless and defend UF against any claims, damages, or other harm related to such breach. In the event the Vendor 
required by subpoena or other judicial or administrative process or by law to disclose such records PII, PHI, or Confidential Information, the 
Vendor shall (i) provide UF with prompt notice thereof; (ii) consult with UF on the advisability of taking steps to resist or narrow such 
disclosure; (iii) furnish only that portion of the information that is responsive to the request; (iv) comply with the requirements of all state and 
federal privacy laws applicable to the Information; and (v) reasonably cooperate with UF in any attempt that UF may make to obtain an order 
or other reliable assurance that confidential treatment will be accorded the records. This provision shall survive the expiration or earlier 
termination of the Agreement. 
12. PUBLIC RECORDS. UF is subject to applicable public records laws as provided by provisions of Florida Statutes Chapter 119 
(the “Florida Public Records Laws”), and UF will respond to such public records request without any duty to give the Vendor prior notice. If 
Vendor is a “contractor” as defined under Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, it shall comply with all applicable public records laws. 
Specifically, Vendor shall: (1) keep and maintain public records required by UF to perform the service; (2) Upon request from UF’s custodian 
of public records, provide UF with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time 
at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided under that section, or as otherwise provide by law; (3) Ensure that public records that are 
exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration 
of the term and following completion of the Agreement if Vendor does not transfer the records to UF; and (4) upon completion of the 
Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to UF all public records in possession of Vendor or keep and maintain public records required by UF to 
perform the service. If Vendor transfers all public records to UF upon completion of the Agreement, Vendor shall destroy any duplicate 
public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If Vendor keeps and maintains public 



7 of 8 University of Florida Contract for Services v.2019.02  

records upon completion of the Agreement, Vendor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored 
electronically must be provided to UF, upon request by UF’s public records custodian, in a format that is compatible with UF’s information 
technology systems. If UF receives a request for public records, and UF does not possess such records, UF shall immediately notify Vendor 
of such request, and Vendor must provide them to UF or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time. If Vendor 
does not comply with the request for records, UF shall enforce the terms of the Agreement, and Vendor may be subject to civil action under 
Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, and the penalties outlined under Section 119.10, Florida Statutes. UF may unilaterally cancel the 
Agreement for Vendor’s refusal to allow public access to all public records that were made or received in conjunction with the Agreement. 
This provision shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of the Agreement. IF THE VENDOR HAS QUESTIONS 
REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 
VENDOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, 
CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT (352) 846-3903, BY EMAIL AT pr-  
request@ufl.edu, OR BY MAIL AT 101 TIGERT HALL, PO Box 113156, GAINESVILLE, 
FLORIDA 32611. 
1. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. In the performance of the Agreement, Vendor shall, at its own expense, at all times, comply with 
all applicable federal, state, and local  laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances and all other governmental  requirements. Vendor 
acknowledges and agrees that Vendor has and will at all times maintain all governmental permits, licenses, consents, and approvals 
necessary to perform its obligations under the Agreement. Vendor shall also comply with all applicable UF policies and regulations applicable 
to the Agreement. This provision shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of the Agreement. 
2. COMPLIANCE WITH EXPORT CONTROL REGULATIONS. To the extent that U.S. Export Control Regulations apply to Vendor, 
then Vendor agrees to comply with export control laws, including the International Traffic in Arms Regulations (ITAR); the Export 
Administration Regulations (EAR); and the Office of Foreign Assets Control Regulations (OFAC). If Vendor provides export controlled 
products, technology and/or software (“goods”) to UF, Vendor will provide UF with a list of ECCNs (Export Control Classification Numbers) 
or the United States Munitions List (USML) Category Numbers, for such goods. This provision shall survive the expiration or earlier 
termination of the Agreement. 
3. COMPLIANCE WITH PCI-DSS. If the Vendor is performing any credit card processing on behalf of UF, Vendor warrants and 
represents that it has the appropriate safeguarding measures to protect cardholder data, and, at a minimum, shall fully comply with the 
Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard (“PCI DSS”). Vendor further agrees to comply with UF’s Payment Card Policy and UF Credit  
Card Standards. 
4. CERTIFICATION. A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity 
crime may not perform work as a contractor, , subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact 
business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Florida Statutes § 287.017, for CATEGORY TWO for a period 
of 36 months from the date being placed on the convicted vendor list. By entering into the Agreement, Vendor is certifying that Vendor is 
not on any convicted vendor list (see § 287.133(2)(a), F.S.). 
5. LOBBYING. Vendor is prohibited from using funds provided under the Agreement for the purpose of lobbying the Legislature or 
any official, officer, commission, board, authority, council, committee, or department of the executive branch or the judicial branch of state 
government. 
6. UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS. The Vendor’s employment of unauthorized aliens is considered a violation of Section 274A(e) of the 
Immigration and Nationality Act. If the Vendor knowingly employs unauthorized aliens, such violation shall be cause for UF’S unilateral 
cancellation of the Agreement. 
7. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY. Vendor affirms the principles of equal opportunity employment. Vendor will not discriminate against 
qualified candidates for any unlawful reasons, including race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, age or disability. 
32. NO CONFLICT OF INTEREST. Vendor represents that neither Vendor nor its employees, officers or owners have, or whose 
relative have, a relationship with UF, that will result in a violation of the Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees, including, but not 
limited to Florida Statutes Section 112.313(3) and (7) and Florida Statutes 112.3185(6) thereof, by reason of the Vendor entering into the 
Agreement. In addition, as applicable, neither Vendor nor any employee, agent or other person acting on its behalf will: undertake, cause, 
or permit any act that would violate any applicable anti-corruption law, including, but not limited to, the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, 
and the UK Bribery Act; or make, cause, or permit any offer, promise, or payment of money or any other thing of value to any third party, 
directly or indirectly, to improperly influence the actions of any person, or to obtain any improper advantage in favor of UF in connection with 
any of the Services. 
33. AGREEMENTS RELATED TO UF’S AGREEMENT WITH UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. IF UF HAS ENTERED INTO AN 
AGREEMENT WITH THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, OR ANY DEPARTMENT THEREOF, AND THE AGREEMENT IS ENTERED 
INTO WITH THE VENDOR TO FURTHER THE PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK REQUIRED IN SUCH AGREEMENT, THE VENDOR 
SHALL COMPLY WITH THE FEDERAL FLOW THROUGH REQUIREMENTS, ON THE UF PROCUREMENT SERVICES WEBSITE 
UNDER PURCHASE ORDER TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
34. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE. The Vendor represents and warrants that the Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and 
delivered by and on behalf of the Vendor and constitutes the valid, binding and enforceable agreement in accordance with the terms hereof. 
If the Agreement is signed by the Vendor’s agent, such agent warrants that he/she is duly authorized to act for and on behalf of the Vendor, 
that he/she is authorized to enter into the Agreement, and that the agent and Vendor shall be jointly and severally liable for any breach of 
the Agreement or of the representation. 
35. FACSIMILE SIGNATURES ALLOWED. The Agreement, along with any and all Exhibits, may be executed and delivered by 
facsimile signature by any of the parties to the other parties; to the extent permissible under Florida law, a facsimiles signature shall have 
the same legal force and effect as an original signature. 
36. SURVIVAL. Any provision of the Agreement providing for performance by either party after termination of the Agreement shall 
survive such termination and continue to be effective and enforceable. 
37. SEVERABILITY. Each term, covenant, condition, or provision of the Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest 
extent permitted by law, and if any such term, covenant, condition or provision of the Agreement, or the application thereof to any Vendor 
or circumstance, shall ever be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable by a court or judicial officer, such term, covenant, condition, or 
provision shall be deemed replaced by a term or provision that is valid and enforceable and that comes closest to expressing the intention 
of the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable term, covenant, condition, or provision. 
38. NOTICE. Any notice to either party hereunder must be in writing and signed by the party giving it, and served: 1) by hand; 2) 
through the United States Mail, postage prepaid, registered or certified, return receipt requested; or 3) through expedited mail or package 
service, if a receipt showing the delivery has been retained; addressed to the address in the Agreement. 
39. AMENDMENTS. The Agreement may only be amended by written amendments duly executed by the parties hereto. If any 
provision or application thereto to any circumstance is held to be invalid or unenforceable, such provision shall be ineffective and the 
remainder of the Agreement shall remain valid and enforceable. 

mailto:pr-request@ufl.edu
mailto:pr-request@ufl.edu
mailto:pr-request@ufl.edu
http://www.fa.ufl.edu/departments/treasury-management/card-ops/
http://www.fa.ufl.edu/departments/treasury-management/card-ops/
http://www.fa.ufl.edu/departments/treasury-management/card-ops/
http://www.fa.ufl.edu/departments/treasury-management/card-ops/
http://www.fa.ufl.edu/departments/treasury-management/card-ops/


8 of 8 University of Florida Contract for Services v.2019.02  

32. COUNTERPARTS; FACSIMILES. The Agreement may NOT be executed in counterparts. Pursuant to Florida law, a facsimile 
signature shall be deemed to constitute an original signature. 
33. DATA PROTECTION COMPLIANCE. To the extent applicable, Vendor shall ensure and hereby represents and warrants that 
all personal data is properly collected, stored, processed, secured, archived or destroyed in compliance with Federal, State and applicable 
international privacy laws, including the EU General Data Protection Regulation 2016/679 (GDPR). 

 
ADDITIONAL TERMS FOR INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS. 
34. Key Personnel. Vendor may only reassign or substitute Key Personnel upon consent by UF, not to be unreasonably withheld, 
or upon the unavailability of assigned Key Personnel due to illness or other factors beyond Vendor’s control, provided that prior notice of 
such reassignment or substitution is delivered to UF. Additionally, Vendor shall substitute Key Personnel upon UF’s reasonable request. 
35. Ownership of Work Product. All right, title and interest in and to any invention, work product, idea or creation conceived, 
developed or produced during the performance of services under the Agreement (including but not limited to creative, copy, scripts, story 
boards, writing, copyrights, trademarks, art, music, software and documentation, business systems or ideas, and research projects) are 
considered a work-made-for hire and shall be property of UF whether created individually by the Vendor or jointly with UF, on or off premises. 
If Vendor is providing software, UF may create and retain a copy of the Vendor and related documentation for back up and disaster recovery 
purposes, and for archival purposes for use after the Agreement is terminated. This provision shall survive the expiration or earlier termination 
of the Agreement. 
36. Access to Work. Although Vendor has the authority to control and direct the performance of the details of the work, the work 
contemplated herein must meet UF’s standards and approval and shall be subject to UF’s general right of inspection to secure the 
satisfactory completion thereof. 
37. Non-Compete. If Vendor is acting as a consultant to UF and is representing UF’s interests in dealings with other third parties, 
Vendor shall not accept employment with or act as an independent contractor for such third parties for a period of one (1) year after the 
Agreement is terminated. 
38. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default of its obligations hereunder if and so long as it is prevented from 
performing such obligations by an act of war, hostile foreign action, labor strike, nuclear explosion, earthquake, hurricane, tornado, or other 
catastrophic natural event or act of God. 

 

ADDITIONAL TERMS FOR SERVICES/ENTERTAINMENT/PERFORMANCE AGREEMENTS. 
39. Deposit. Unless non-state funds are being used to pay, UF cannot make deposits or prepay any amounts. Any deposits made 
by UF are refundable. 
40. Warranty. Vendor warrants that it has all of the requisite resources, skill, experience and qualifications to perform all of the 
services obtained by UF in a professional and workmanlike manner, in accordance with industry standards for similar services 
41. Insurance. In addition to paragraph 11(a) of these Terms, the Vendor shall provide and keep in full force and effect during the 
term of the Agreement, at the Vendor’s own cost and expense, the following insurance policies for the joint benefit of the Vendor and UF, 
with an insurer reasonably acceptable to UF: (i) Commercial General Liability which includes coverage for bodily injury, property damage, 
personal injury and contractual liability in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate; (ii) Workers 
Compensation Coverage, to be maintained in an amount equal to or greater than the statutory limits required by the laws of the State of 
Florida. In the event the Vendor is exempt by law from carrying Worker’s Compensation insurance, Vendor must provide proof of exemption. 
The Vendor shall deliver to UF true and correct copies of certificates of such insurance and/or exemption. The certificate shall indicate that 
the Commercial General Liability policy carries an endorsement which names The University of Florida Board of Trustees and their 
respective trustees, directors, officers, employees and agents, as additional insureds. The Vendor’s policy shall be primary and any 
insurance carried by UF shall be noncontributing with respect thereto. 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 4, 2019 

 

VI.  New/Unfinished Business  

 

F.  Approval of 2019-21 School Readiness Plan 
Amendment #24 (Part 1- Attachment II C 

Combined Eligibility Policies)* 

 

 

*ACTION ITEM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 

DESCRIPTION Approval of 2017-19 School Readiness Plan Amendment #24 (Part 1) 
Reason for 
Recommended 
Action 

 
Updated Attachment II C Combined Eligibility Policies Rev 091919.  The edits 
are on pages 27, 31, 43-44, and 51-52 ONLY from the entire SR Plan Attachment.  
We have condensed the document for board review to show only these pages 
(instead of the entire policy of 58 pages).   
 

• To change the term “CCEP (Child Care Executive Partnership)” to “SR 
Match Funding” to align with current grant language. 

• To add procedures for verifying the frequency of client employment 
bonuses or overtime (recommendations from OEL following our last 
Accountability review). 

 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 
 

• The Coalition’s School Readiness Plan would not be in compliance with 
OEL. 

 
 

How the Action will 
be accomplished 

Board Approval, then OEL Approval. 

 
 
 



1 

 
SRPP06 BG 8 – Working Poor Economically Disadvantaged & Migrant Farmworkers & CCPP 

 
Policy and Procedures 

 
Policy: 
 
Note: Until EFS Mod is fully functional, ECS will determine eligibility using work-arounds to the 
extent needed.  These work-arounds may include hand calculations and hard copies of 
documents or other methods of documenting the family’s eligibility so that they may receive 
services. 
 
 
Income Based Eligibility Categories. 
 
(a)Initial Eligibility Determination. 
 
The age limits of eligible children are set forth in Section 1002.87(1), F.S. as follows:  
 
Priority 3- Priority shall be given next to a child from birth to the beginning of the school year 
for which the child is eligible for admission to kindergarten in a public school under 
s. 1003.21(1)(a)2. who is from a working family that is economically disadvantaged, and may 
include such child’s eligible siblings, beginning with the school year in which the sibling is 
eligible for admission to kindergarten in a public school under s. 1003.21(1)(a)2. until the 
beginning of the school year in which the sibling is eligible to begin 6th grade, provided that 
the first priority for funding an eligible sibling is local revenues available to the coalition for 
funding direct services. 
 
Priority 6- Priority shall be given next to a child who is younger than 13 years of age from a 
working family that is economically disadvantaged. A child who is eligible under this 
paragraph whose sibling is enrolled in the school readiness program under paragraph (c) 
shall be given priority over other children who are eligible under this paragraph. 
 
The family’s income, as defined in Section 1002.81(8), F.S., must be at or below 150 percent 
of the Federal Poverty Level (FPL) for economically disadvantaged and 200 percent of the 
FPL for SR Match Funding [formerly known as Child Care Executive Partnership (CCEP)] 
children for entry into the school readiness program. If 85 percent of the State Median 
Income (SMI) is less than 150 percent of the FPL, then 85 percent of the SMI is the income 
threshold for entry into the school readiness program for economically disadvantaged. If 85 
percent of the SMI is less than 200 percent of the FPL, then 85 percent of the SMI is the 
income threshold for entry into the school readiness program for CCEP SR Match Funding 
children. 
 

 
 
 

 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=1000-1099/1003/Sections/1003.21.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=1000-1099/1003/Sections/1003.21.html


2 

 
Categories: 
 

School Readiness Service Priorities 
      

Priority Billing 
Group 

Billing Group 
Title 

Eligibility 
Code 

Eligibility 
Title Definition 

            

3, 6, 9 BG8 Economically 
Disadvantaged ECON Economically 

Disadvantage 

Description: Child care for a child from a family that is 
economically disadvantaged including, but not limited 
to, a working migratory family that is economically 
disadvantaged as defined by 34 CFR s. 200.81(d) or (f) 
or an agricultural worker who is employed by more 
than one agricultural employer during the course of a 
year, and whose income varies according to weather 
conditions and market stability.  
Applicable Purpose for Care: Employment (EM), 
Education & Training (ET), Both Employment and 
Training and/or Education (TT), Migrant Employed (ME) 
or Disability (DI)  
Work Requirements: In a one parent family, the parent 
must be employed at least 20 hours per week or 
engaged in eligible educational activities unless exempt 
from work requirements due to age or disability. In two 
parent families, both parents must be working a 
combined total of 40 hours per week or engaged in 
eligible education activities unless exempt from work 
requirements due to age or disability. Parent(s) with 
whom the child resides can be exempt from work 
requirements due to age or disability, as determined 
and documented by a physician licensed under chapter 
458 or chapter 459, F.S. 
Child Age Requirements: Birth to younger than 13 
years 
Child Care Authorization Form: No  
Countable Income: Earned and countable unearned 
income from all household members who are a part of 
the family unit. Exclude income earned by children, 
including a concurrently enrolled high school student 
who has attained 18 years or a concurrently enrolled 
student with a disability who has attained 22 years. 
Household Size: All children younger than 18 years and 
household members who are 18 years of age or older 
who are currently residing in the same dwelling unit. 
Income Eligible: Yes-- at or below 150 percent of FPL 
for entry into program, at or below 85 percent for 
continued eligibility; if 85 percent of State Median 
Income (SMI) is less than 150 percent of FPL, this is the 
income threshold for entry into the program 
Authorization Period: 12 months. 
Reference: 45 CFR. §§§ 98.20(a)(1)(ii), 98.44, 98.50; 
CCDF State Plan, Part 2.5; Sections 1002.81(7) & 
1002.87(1)(c)(f), F.S.;  



3 

  CCPP 
Child Care 
Executive 
Partnership 

P1 
SR Matching 
Fund (formerly 
CCEP) 

Description: Child care for a child from a working family 
that is economically disadvantaged and receives CCEP 
SR matching funds. The CCEP SR Matching Fund 
program provides state, federal and local funds to offer 
subsidies to low-income working parents whose family 
income does not exceed the allowable income for any 
federally subsidized child care program with a dollar-
for-dollar match from employers, local government, 
and other matching contributions. 
Applicable Purpose for Care: Employment (EM), 
Education & Training (ET), Both Employment and 
Training and/or Education (TT) or Disability (DI)  
Work Requirements: In a one parent family, the parent 
must be employed at least 20 hours per week or 
engaged in eligible educational activities unless exempt 
from work requirements due to age or disability. In two 
parent families, both parents must be working a 
combined total of 40 hours per week or engaged in 
eligible education activities unless exempt from work 
requirements due to age or disability. Parent(s) with 
whom the child resides can be exempt from work 
requirements due to age or disability, as determined 
and documented by a physician licensed under chapter 
458 or chapter 459, F.S. 
Child Age Requirements: Younger than 13 years of age  
Child Care Authorization Form: No 
Countable Income: Earned and countable unearned 
income from all household members who are a part of 
the family unit. Exclude income earned by children, 
including a concurrently enrolled high school student 
who has attained 18 years or a concurrently enrolled 
student with a disability who has attained 22 years. 
Household Size: All children younger than 18 years and 
household members who are 18 years of age or older 
who are currently residing in the same dwelling unit. 
Income Eligible: Yes -- at or below 200 percent of FPL 
initial entry and continued eligibility  
Authorization Period: 12 months. 
Reference:  45 CFR §§§ 98.20(a)(1)(ii), 98.44, 98.50; 
Section 1002.94, F.S. 

 
CCPP – SR Child Care Executive Partnership. Local business, local government, and other 
funders provide dollar for dollar match with SR Match Funding (formerly known as CCEP 
funding) to provide child care services. Regular parent fees apply.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 

SRPP19 ECS Case-notes 
 

Policy and Procedures 
 
Policy: 

 
Case history notes are a tool for the eligibility counselor to use when determining eligibility or 
denying eligibility for SR services. Case history notes can fill in gaps and explain missing 
documentation for income calculations and/or determination of family size that are not 
readily explained by reviewing the paperwork and documents submitted for eligibility. They 
also serve as a reminder as to what was discussed in an interview, the next appointment 
date, redetermination due date, and benefits or services given to the family. Good case 
history notes also help program supervisors, reviewers, or other counselors who monitor the 
case files or are assigned to determine eligibility for services at a later date. The case should 
stand alone and proper narration of the reasons behind eligibility decisions will enable 
reviewers to reach the same conclusion as the authorizing worker.  
 
If the coalition followed policy and procedures and narrated actions well, any reviewer 
should reach the same conclusions as the specialist that determined eligibility. 
 
 
Following are SOME examples that should be documented with a casenote: 
 

 Child is enrolled 
 Redeterminations 
 Mailing of Termination notices 
 Mailing of Notice of Eligibility redetermination 
 Any conversations with the family 
 Calls received and/or returned 
 Change of status: address, last name, guardianship, income, (list in EFS the 

previous address/name, etc. & what you changed it to)  
 Change in provider 
 Change in fees 
 Family is receiving Food Stamps 
 Complaints 
 Conversations with other agencies, resources, other FSS about the family 

 
 Verification of employment/tips, including employee’s name, date of hire, 

date first pay is expected, hourly rate, overtime/bonus and projected hours 
of employment  also indicate the employer’s information including the name 
of the employer, name/title of person with whom info. was verified  

 When requesting a different proof of residency other than the parent’s 
license. 

 Child support received and for which children as well as how child support 
was calculated if not evident 

 Notes regarding calculation of income if not straightforward and/or certain 
income was not counted, etc. 



5 

 When countable income is $0 for BG8 eligibilities (ex. How does a parent who 
is in school FT live on $0 income?) 

 When client is a full time student:  
If your potential client qualifies based on the above, in your EFS parent 
history notes, please write, “(person’s name) is a full time student as 
defined by (school’s name).  With (# hours) weekly driving time and 
reasonable study time, (person’s name) qualifies for full time care.”  Be 
sure to always include your initials with the history notes. 

 Case narrations should indicate any whereabouts of absentee parents, to 
prevent unclaimed child support 

 Changes to referrals should be initialed and case narrations noted that a 
discussion occurred with the referring case manager on specified date and 
the change was authorized or a new referral 

 When ASQ’s are completed and if they are not completed, they reason why 

 All unusual circumstances (for example, verification with employer regarding 
overtime and bonuses) 

 Loss of purpose of care 

 Review dates  

 
 

SRPP34 Verifying Employment Information 
 

Policy and Procedures 
 
Policy: 
 
When a parent/guardian is unable to provide 4 weeks of consecutive paystubs, ECS staff 
may obtain employment income information through a locally developed employment 
verification form (VOE), signed statement from the employer or a signed contract for 
employment. ECS staff should give the parent/guardian an employment verification form for 
the employer to complete and sign or have the parent/guardian obtain a signed statement 
or signed contract for employment from the employer. Whichever document is used to verify 
employment it should include the employee’s name, date of hire, date first pay is expected, 
hourly rate, and projected hours of employment. The document shall also contain the 
employer’s information including the name of the employer, name of person completing the 
document and title, contact information, signature and date. If a VOE form is submitted, all 
fields must be completed fully and accurately.  
 
The employer may fax, mail, or deliver the document in person to the ECS office. The 
employer may also provide a written statement with the required information on the 
company’s letterhead. If this source is not available, the FSS should make direct contact with 
the employer to request the information. The FSS should record all contact with the employer 
in the case history notes and on the locally developed employment verification form.  
 



6 

Only in extreme and rare circumstances that must be pre-approved by the Family Service 
Coordinator should the FSS complete a VOE by phone for the employer in place of the employer- 
signed statement described above.  
 
The FSS should record in the case notes the parent/guardian’s employment date of hire, date of first 
pay expected, hourly rate, overtime/bonus frequency (if applicable) and projected hours of 
employment and the employers information as indicated above.  
 
If the employer is uncertain about the number of hours the parent/ guardian will work, FSS should 
authorize eligibility for a shorter period of time, to allow time for the parent/guardian to obtain the 
required number of paystubs and redetermine parent/guardian at that time. History notes explaining 
why paystubs are not available should be entered.  
 
VOEs should only be used for new employment (less than 4 weeks) or for employers that pay “under 
the table”. Do not accept VOEs for clients who receive paystubs. If a client does not have the 
necessary eligibility paperwork at the time of the interview, do not make the client eligible for 
services. Do not enroll or redetermine a client who receives paystubs without having 4 weeks of 
consecutive paystubs in hand.  
 
Procedures: 
 
Reviewing Pay Stubs 
If a parent/guardian provides the FSS with paystubs, the following should be reviewed:  

1. Date and period of pay 
2. Gross/Regular Pay 
3. Bonus and Overtime Pay (YTD) 
4. Hours worked 
5. Status  
6. Name and Address 
7. Child Support Deductions 

 
Please question the parent and employer of any variation in payment. For example, if the FSS notices 
that parent/guardian has a significant YTD under bonus or overtime. The parent/guardian should be 
asked about the amount. It should be verified by the employer and noted with a detailed history 
note. Information provided by the employer will help the FSS determine if the bonus/OT should be 
included in the count. 
 
 
Using a VOE form or employer letter:  
 
At the time of new enrollment and/or redetermination ECS staff must verify VOE’s or letters from 
employers by phone.  All pertinent information on the VOE or letter must be verified and manual 
notes and EFS history Case notes must contain the following information: employee’s name, date of 
hire, date first pay is expected, hourly rate, and projected hours of employment. The document shall 
also contain the employer’s information including the name of the employer, name of person 
completing the document and title, contact information, signature and date. (A copy of the case 
history notes for employment verification shall be placed in the eligibility file.)   
12/13/06-called employer at 850-922-4620-spoke to area manager Ed Bell who stated Ms. Johnson 
was employed beginning 12/10/06 works 30-35 hours per week at $9.50/hour- your initials 
 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 4, 2019 

 

VI.  New/Unfinished Business  

 

G.  Approval of 2019-21 School Readiness Plan 
Amendment #24 (Part 2 – Attachment II I 

Provider Payment Rates)* 

 

 

*ACTION ITEM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 

DESCRIPTION Approval of 2017-19 School Readiness Plan Amendment #24 (Part 2) 
Reason for 
Recommended 
Action 

 
Revisions to the SR Plan Attachment II I Provider Payment Rates, to give all 
providers in the Coalition’s six counties an across-the-board increase of 10% 
(except for one part time rate in Bradford county, as that would put it at above the 
75th percentile of the market rate). 
 
  
 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 
 

• The Coalition’s School Readiness Providers would not receive a payment 
increase effective January 1, 2020. 

 
 

How the Action will 
be accomplished 

Board Approval, then OEL Approval. 

 
 
 



 

Executive Summary – Provider Rate 
Increase 
Overview  

Provider rates paid by the ELC are below the market rate (75th percentile of all rates in a county 
by age group and care type).  In some cases, our rates are below 60 percent, which leaves large 
gaps in what we pay versus what providers charge causing hardships for both providers and 
parents.  According to federal and state regulations, the ELC should to the extent possible pay 
providers at the 75th percentile.  However, it is not acceptable to disenroll children to reach this 
goal and often, it is hard to get permission to raise rates if we have a wait list.  

Over the past couple of years, the ELC has received an increase in School Readiness funding 
and has eliminated our waiting lists for all but school age children.  Additionally, OEL is 
considering imposing mandatory provider rates in the next couple of years as a component of a 
legislatively required funding formula.   

Report Findings 

Between July 2017 and September of 2019, the ELC has received $2,747,858 in additional 
School Readiness Funding.  Part of this increase is covering the costs of payment rate 
differentials based on CLASS scores and registration fees.  We have also enrolled an additional 
250 children per month on average during this time and we continue to enroll as parents come 
onto the waitlist. However, this still leaves the ELC projecting a surplus of $920,000 this year 
without a rate increase.  At least 78% of our budget must be spent on direct services (child care) 
so very little of the surplus could be diverted to other program areas.   

A 10% rate increase effective on January 1, 2020 will cost approximately $660,000 this year.  
This is less than the amount listed on the Fiscal Impact tab that we will be submitting to OEL.  
The reason for this is that their forms do not consider assigned parent fees or days the child is 
not in attendance making their projected costs higher than our projections.    

Next year, the costs will double since it is for the full year, but we also will have some additional 
cost savings next year.  We would not be paying the $75 per child registration fee for each child, 
only newly enrolled or 1st time transfers.  The current budget for 1st time registration fees for 



those currently enrolled is $312,000.   We also have funds set aside to correct school age 
enrollments from the first 2 months of the year due to EFS Mod issues that will not be 
reoccurring next year.  Even with the increase this year we are projecting to have surplus 
without further enrollment. While this surplus can be used for additional enrollment or in other 
areas and we will still meet the 78% direct services threshold, we can count this as part of the 
funding that will be available next year as well.  We are not including any possible attrition but 
allowing attrition to occur is a strategy that we can employ if needed.  Below is a breakdown of 
how the ELC would fund the additional $660,000 next year with a small surplus while holding 
enrollment steady. 

Registration fees:            $312,000 

School-Age enrollment   $130,000 

Surplus 19/20                                    $260,000  

Total               $702,000 

Conclusion 

We are proposing a 10% across the board rate increase for all providers in all counties. 
Three smaller areas or rather individual rates will not receive the 10% increase because 
this would place them above the 75th percentile but all provider types and all age groups 
will receive a 10% increase or an increase to the 75th percentile.  This will be a help to 
both providers and parents and is supported by both groups as borne out by our survey 
where 85% of respondents favored an increase in rates.    

 
 
 

 















Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 4, 2019 

 

VI.  New/Unfinished Business  

 

H.  Approval of Revisions to the Coalition’s 
Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual* 

 

 

*ACTION ITEM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 

DESCRIPTION Revisions to the Coalition’s Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

Reason for 
Recommended 
Action 

Revisions: 
 

HR313 – Emergency Closings 
• Replaced the third paragraph with language that more closely 

aligns to Federal and State regulations and practices. 
• Removed the fourth paragraph regarding employees working 

while officially closed.   
 

 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 

• The Coalition’s Personnel Policies would not be updated to be more in line with 
governmental regulations nor actual practices.   

 
How the Action 
will be 
accomplished 

Approval of the Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual revisions listed above. 

 



                                              Early Learning Coalition of North Florida                                      1 
Personnel Policies and Procedures 

HR313 Emergency Closings 
 
Effective Date:  02/19/08 
Revision Date: 12/04/19 

At times, emergencies such as severe weather, fires, power failures, etc., can disrupt company operations. 
In extreme cases, these circumstances may require the closing of a work facility. 

When operations are officially closed due to emergency conditions, the time off from scheduled work 
will be paid no more than the allowable number of days approved by the C.E.O. 

In cases where an emergency closing is not authorized, employees who fail to report for work will not be 
paid for the time off.  Employees may request available paid leave time such as unused vacation benefits. 

In cases where work facilities remain open during an emergency, employees who are subjected to 
conditions that prevents them from reporting to work as usual must request use of annual leave, 
personal sick leave or leave without pay. 

Employees in essential operations may be asked to work on a day when operations are officially closed. 
In these circumstances, employees who work will receive regular pay. 
  
 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Board Meeting 

December 4, 2019 

 

VI.  New/Unfinished Business  

 

I.  Approval of the Management Decision 
Recommendation for ECS Audit 2018/2019* 

 

*ACTION ITEM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 

DESCRIPTION Approval of Management Decision Recommendation for ECS 
Audit 2018/2019 

Reason for Recommended Action 
 
 
 
 
 

To approve management decision to consider the ECS annual 
audit properly reviewed and therefore resolved.  
 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 
 

• The Coalition would not be in compliance with policy 
requiring committee approval. 
 

How the Action will be accomplished Management decision to be approved at 12/4/2019 Board 
meeting. 

 



ELC OF North Florida, Inc. 
 

Management Decision Recommendation 
ECS Audit Report 

For FYE June 30, 2019 
 
 
Ralston and Company, PA, CPA performed the June 30, 2019 audit of Episcopal 
Children’s Services, Inc.  The report was issued on September 26, 2019 and subsequent 
events were evaluated through the date of issuance. This report was received by ELC on 
October 1, 2019, and subsequently reviewed by ELC management and staff. The report 
and audited financial statements are on file and available to the Board for review at 
anytime. 
 
A summary of the audit results is as follows: 
 

1. The Independent Auditor’s Report 
a. Expressed an unqualified opinion on the consolidated financial statements 

of ECS. 
b. Stated no instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements 

of Episcopal Children's Services, Inc. were disclosed during the audit. 
c. Stated no material weaknesses were identified during the audit of the 

financial statements. 
d. Expressed an unqualified opinion on the major award programs. 
e. Stated no material weaknesses were identified during the audit of major 

federal programs. 
 

2. The Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls 
a. Expressed no opinion on ECS internal controls.   
b. Reported no material weaknesses to internal controls.  
c. Expressed no opinion on ECS compliance and other such matters.  
d. The results of the internal control testing disclosed no issues of 

noncompliance or other matters that would be required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards. 

 
3. Supplemental Information 

a. There were no findings in relation to prior audits. 
b. There were no current audit findings on the ECS Financial Statements. 
c. There were no current audit findings or questioned costs on the ECS 

Major Federal Awards Program Audit. 
d. ECS qualifies as a low risk auditee. 

 
 
With no audit findings, material weaknesses, or issues of noncompliance, this audit is 
considered complete. 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Board Meeting 

December 4, 2019 

 

VI.  New/Unfinished Business  

 

J.  Approval of ELCNF 2018-2019 Annual 
Report* 

 

*ACTION ITEM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 

DESCRIPTION Approval of ELCNF 2018-2019 Annual Report 
Reason for Recommended Action 
 
 
 
 
 

To approve the ELCNF 2018-2019 Annual Report in accordance 
with OEL Policy.  
 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 
 

• The Coalition would not be in compliance with policy 
requiring committee approval. 
 

How the Action will be accomplished Management decision to be approved at 12/4/2019 Board 
meeting. 

 























































Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 4, 2019 

 

VI.  New/Unfinished Business  

 

K.  Review of Board Membership-
INFORMATIONAL   

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Page 1 of 3 
 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 

B O A R D  M E M B E R S H I P  S U M M A R Y  
As of December 4, 2019 

 

Position Name Term Start Date Term End Date 
B A K E R  

Total Private Sector 0 
B R A D F O R D  

    
Total Private Sector 0 

C L A Y  
Governor Appointee Private Sector Ron Coleman November 22, 2013 April 30, 2016 
Governor Appointee Private Sector *Brian H. Graham May 14, 2015 April 30, 2019 

Private Sector    
Total Private Sector 2 

N A S S A U  
District Superintendent of Schools or Designee *Kristi Simpkins December 2013 December 2021 

Total Private Sector 0 
P U T N A M  

Representative of Programs for Children with Disabilities 
under the Federal Individuals with Disabilities Education 

Act Marsha Hill March 2018 March 2022 
County Health Department Director or Designee Mary Garcia December 2017 December 2021 

S T .  J O H N S  
Member Appointed by Bd. of County Commissioners or 

the Governing Board of a Municipality Jeb Smith  June 2017 June 2021 
Head Start Director Brian McElhone July 2017 July 2021 

Governor Appointee Private Sector CHAIR Nancy Pearson, Chair November 22, 2013 April 30, 2021 
Private Sector Mike Siragusa September 2018 September 2022 
Private Sector Michelle Jonihakis December 2018 December 2022 
Private Sector Kyle Gammon September 2019 September 2023 

Total Private Sector 4 
M U L T I  C O U N T I E S  

DCF Regional Administrator or Designee Charles Puckett December 2018 December 2022 
Regional Workforce Board Executive Director or 

Designee 
*Renee Williams, Vice Chair 
(Baker, Clay, Nassau, Putnam, St. Johns) September 2014 September 2022 

President of a Florida College System or Designee * Dr. Myrna Allen September 2014 September 2022 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 

(Clay, Putnam, St. Johns) 

Representative of Private For-Profit Child Care Providers 
Patricia Tauch 
(Clay County) January 2019 January 2023 

Representative of Faith Based Child Care Providers 
Theresa Little, Treasurer 
(Putnam, St. Johns) December 7, 2016 December 7, 2020 

Central Agency Administrator 
Teresa Matheny 
(All Counties) September 21, 2016 NA 

Private Sector 
Aubrie Simpson Gotham 
(St. Johns) December 2018 December 2022 

Private Sector 
Joy Stanton, Secretary 
(St. Johns) March 16, 2016 March 16, 2020 

Total Private Sector 2 
Combined Total Private Sector (Must comprise 
MORE THAN 1/3 of total Board Membership): 8 

TOTAL MEMBERSHIP 19 
 Second 4 year term 

 
• Ron Coleman- Governor appointee for the private sector has filed paperwork with the Governor’s office for approval of a second term.  I 

received word that Ron is approved, just waiting on documentation. 
 

• Nancy Pearson- Governor appointee for the private sector has filed her paperwork with the Governor’s office for approval of a second term 
and has been approved.  Nancy’s new term is from August 30, 2018 to April 30, 2021.    
 

• Mary Garcia- Voted in December 2017 to December 2021 as County Health Department Director or Designee. 
 

• Dr. Myrna Allen- Term date is September 2018; she has served one term and has been reappointed as the Designee by President Joe Pickens 
of St. Johns River State College to serve a second term.  The Board approved Dr. Allen’s second term on the September 19, 2018 meeting.  
Dr. Allen’s second term expires September 2022. (President of a Florida College system designee) 
 

• Renee Williams- Term date is September 2018; she has served one term and has been  reappointed for a second term as the Designee by 
President Bruce Ferguson of the Regional Workforce Board.  The Board approved R. Williams second term on the September 19, 2018 
meeting.  R. Williams second term expires September 2022.  (Regional Workforce Board Executive Director or Designee) 
 

• Mandatory Seats: All mandatory seats have been filled. 
 

• Combined Total Private Sector (Must be comprised of MORE THAN 1/3 of total Board Membership): 1/3 of 19 42%.  We currently have 8 
private sector members. 

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 

• Total Membership: 15 to 30 members.  We currently have 19 board members. 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 4, 2019 

 

VII.  Board Absenteeism Log  

 

INFORMATIONAL 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.

BOARD
MBER ABSENTEEISM LOG

By-Laws    
Unexcused 
absences from 
two (2) 
3.2.8.   
Mandated 
members with 
three (3) 

X = Attended
No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting

MEMBER NAME 9/19/2018 Oct-18 Nov-18 12/5/2018 Jan-19 Feb-19 3/13/2019 Apr-19 May-19 6/12/2019 Jul-19 Sept-19 9/11/2019

1 Allen, M. X X x x X

2 Coleman, R. EXCUSED EXCUSED X X EXCUSED

3 Delcomyn, V. X X X X No longer a member

4 Deputy, A. X X No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member

5 Graham, B. EXCUSED EXCUSED X X X

6 Hough, A. EXCUSED RESIGNED No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member

10 Pearson, N. X EXCUSED X EXCUSED X

11 Ramoutar, M. X No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member

12 Simpkins, K. X EXCUSED X EXCUSED EXCUSED

13 Sirgusa, M. New Member EXCUSED x x X

14 Matheny, T X X X X X

15 Williams, R. X X X EXCUSED X

17 Stanton, J. X X X X X

18 Little, T. X X X X X

19 Smith, J. EXCUSED EXCUSED X X X

20 McElhone, B. X EXCUSED X EXCUSED EXCUSED

21 Hill, M. X X X X X

22 Garcia, M. X X x X X

23 Tauch, P. Not a member Not a member New Member X X

24 Jonihakis, M. Not a member New Member x x X

25 Puckett, C. Not a member New Member x x EXCUSED

26
Simpson-
Gotham, A. Not a member New Member x x X

27 Gammon, K. Not a member Not a member Not a member Not a member New Member



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
Annual Board Meeting 

December 4, 2019 
 

 

VIII. Board Comment 

       

 

IX. Next Meetings 
 

• Wednesday, February 5, 2020 10:30 a.m. – 
Exec/Admin Committee Conference Call  

Meeting 
 

• Wednesday, March 11, 2020, 10:30 a.m.-  
Board Meeting at   

Renaissance World Golf Village and Convention 
Center 

 
      

 

X. Adjournment* 

 

*ACTION ITEM 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 4, 2019 

 

Board Members Memorandum of Voting 
Conflict     

 

INFORMATIONAL 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  





MEMoRANDUM oF VoilNG CoNrlrcr roR BoaRo MtMsrns

LAST NAME, FIRST NAME, MIDDTE NAME

MATUNG ADDRESS C|ry CouNrY
DUVAL8443 BAYMEADOWS RD. SUITE 1 JACKSONVII.LE, FL

NAME oF BoARD oR CoMMtrrEE

ELC OF NORTH FIORIDA
DATE oN WHICH THE VoTE OCCURRED 1214/19

Per OE[-PG-003-10(5Xb] and F.S. 112.3143(3)(a):

Each votins member shall:
1. Prior to the vote being taken, publicly state the nature and extent of any conflict of interest and abstain from

voting or participating when a conflict of interest exists.

2. Abstain from voting.

3' Within 15 days after the vote occurs, complete and file this Memorandum form with the person responsible for
recording the minutes of the meetin& who then shall incorporate this Memorandum form in the minutes.

x

DISCI.OSURE OF LOCAI. OFFICER'S INTEREST

l, Teresa Mathenv . hereby disclose that onrzt4tzurg 

-

(a) A measure came or will come before me which will(check onel
_ inure to my special private gain or loss;

inure to the special gain or loss of my business associate,
inure to the special gain or loss of my relative,
inure to the special gain or loss of Episcopal Children,s Services oy
whom I am retained: or

_ inure to the special gain or loss of_ which
is the parent organization or subsidiary of a principal which has retained me.

(b) The measure before me and the nature of my conflicting interest is the measure as follows:
VI:

C. Approvaf of Episcopal Children's Services 201912020 Contract Amendment #0002- 19*
D. Retro Active Approval (effective 09/01/2019) of ELC ofNorth Florida and the university of Florida/Lastinser

Center Early Learning Florida Conrracr effective 09/01/19-0813 | 120+
E. Retro Active Approval (effective 09101/2019) of ELC ofNorth Florida - University of Florida./Lastinger Center and

Episcopal Children's Services Early Leaming Florida Contract effective 09/01llg-08/3ll2O+
G' Approval of20l9-2l School Readiness Plan Amendment #24 (Part 2 - Attachment II I Provider Payment Rates)*

I. Approval ofthe Management Decision Recommendation for ECS Audit 20 lg/201g*

Date Filed

Early Leoning Coalition of North Florida, lnc.



rcody
Typewritten Text

rcody
Typewritten Text

rcody
Typewritten Text
X

rcody
Typewritten Text

rcody
Typewritten Text

rcody
Typewritten Text
St John's Cty Headstart Funding

rcody
Typewritten Text

rcody
Typewritten Text

rcody
Typewritten Text

rcody
Typewritten Text

rcody
Typewritten Text
G. Approval of 2019-21 School Readiness Plan Amendment  #24 (Part 2-Attachment II 1 Provider Payment Rates)*



rcody
Typewritten Text

rcody
Typewritten Text

rcody
Typewritten Text

rcody
Typewritten Text

rcody
Typewritten Text
Approval of 2019-21 School Readiness Plan Amendment #24 (Part 2- Attachment II 1 Provider Payment Rates) *

rcody
Typewritten Text
X

rcody
Typewritten Text
School Readiness Funding


	1-Tentative Agenda 12 04 2019
	December 4, 2019; 2:00 p.m.
	Renaissance World Golf Village and Convention Center
	TENTATIVE AGENDA

	2-CS I II III
	3-CS IV
	4-Board Minutes - 09 11 19 Draft
	Episcopal Children’s Services (ECS) On-Site Monitoring:

	5-CS V A
	6-CS V  B
	7-Finance Managers Report
	8-CS V  C
	9-Program Update 1 Qtr 19-20
	Episcopal Children’s Services (ECS) On-Site Monitoring:

	10-CS V  D
	11-Early Literacy outreach first quarter report
	12-CS V  E
	13-CS VI  A
	14-Summary of DB Evaluation 2019
	15-CS VI B
	16-NEFEC Lease 2020-21 Early Learning Coalition
	17-CS VI C
	18-AIS agenda item ECS 19-20 contract amend 2
	19-ECS-contract amendment 0002-19
	20-CS VI D
	21-AIS-OEL-ELC UFLC ELFL Contract 090119-083120 rev 100119
	22-UFLC ELFL Contract 090119-083120 signed by both parties
	23-CS VI E
	24-AIS-ELC-ECS UFLC ELFL Contract 090119-083120
	25-ELC-ECS UFLC ELFL Contract 090119-083120
	CONTRACT FOR SERVICES
	University of Florida Standard Terms and Conditions
	ADDITIONAL TERMS FOR INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS.
	ADDITIONAL TERMS FOR SERVICES/ENTERTAINMENT/PERFORMANCE AGREEMENTS.


	26-CS VI F
	27-AIS  - SR Plan Amend 24 120419 Part 1
	28-Attach II C Combined Eligibility Policies Rev 091919-showing edits ONLY ON pgs 27 31 43-44 51-52
	29-CS VI G
	30-AIS  - SR Plan Amend 24 120419 Part 2
	31-Executive Summary Template Rate Increase deb edits
	32-Provider Current and Proposed Rates by County
	33-CS VI H
	34-AIS-Personnel Pol rev for BA 120419
	35-Personnel Pol-Proc rev BA 120419 - ind policy
	36-CS VI  I
	37-AIS for MDR-ECS Audit
	38-MDR - ECS Audit Report 18-19
	39-CS VI  J
	40-AIS for ELCNF Annual Report
	41-ELCNF Annual Report FY18-19
	42-CS VI K
	43-Board  Membership Smry 12 4 19
	44-CS VII
	45-Board Absenteeism Log for 12.4.19
	Board

	46-CS VIII IX X
	47-CS Memorandums of Voting Conflict
	48-Marsha Hill Memorandum of Voting Conflict
	49-TMatheny Voting Conflict 12042019
	50-Brian McElhone Memorandum of Voting Conflicgt
	51-Patricia Tauch Memorandum of Voting Conflict



